
EFGHIJKJLMNOOPJQFROHSTGUOFJTFVJWOXYHJZT[Y
 
CDEFGEHIJ6789:896;<J=J>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ;;86;896;< 

ADEF?EJBEJFHCW?EHJGJFGJ2I@JKWDDJFEEHJGIJEIGADEGEJGJW?JEICEDJAF0EJBWFED@HWF0J?W0FFG@DE?LJBEHIDEJFDDJIHJGJE 

IGJEDJGF?D?JF??W0FEHJGIJ2I@JB2J2I@DJF@GJIDW.EDJFDEJCW?WBDEJIFJ2I@DJGF?DJAF0E/JRJWDEJEIGADEGWF0JGJW?JGF?DX 
ADEF?EJEF?@DEJGJFGJ2I@J?EDEEGJGJEJEIDDEEGJF@GJIDW.EDJhTiJORJjkFYJlmnJomKpqJIDJ2I@JGF2JFIGJBEJF??W0FEH 

GJEJEIDDEEGJGF?D?/ 

T\JLW]^^_J`abE MNCO>PQJPO>NRJCCJBMSTSQUCL 

BCEDEEGJFFGEJHDIGJGJEJHDIAJHIKFJGEF@L 

c\JW]adeEdJafe]^dQgEdJhaiJOR ME0EFG?YO@GJIDW.EHJCJFDGEDJCEJIID 
jkFYJlmGNnJomKpq 

BVIDJGEEJFWEFDJDEF?IF?XJADEF?EJDEY?EDEEG 
F@GJIDW.EDJFFGEJHDIGJGJEJHDIAJHIKF 

GEF@L/ 

M\JrQLedQWeJWJWLrJ^XJ_^WaeQ^` QPCJCC1J: 

VK\JLW]^^_JQ`X^dbaeQ^` 

AM9:OMPJO11MSCC A;NQSJQQ:RSM VOSJQQ:RSM S:O9>JO11MSCC 

;;7JSJ;7:GJJCGDEEG 
QEKJPIDDXJQPJ;63@9 

Vo\JZ]^`EJW^`eaWeJ`fbZEdJX^dJaXeEdJ]^fdLJEbEd[E`WQEL 

CIFGFEGJQFGE ODEEJ1WFEI@
 

UWGDE VI@FHEDJFFHJSWEE@GWCEJ1WDEEGID
 

SGED0EFE2JAJIFEJQ@GBEDJBXXXYXXXY
 
XXXXL 

Y\JLW]^^_JYEZJarrdELLJhfd_q JGGAI88KKK/2FDIKEJFDGED/ID08 

R\JraeEJ^XJQ`QeQa_JW]adeEd 67896;3 

[\JraeEJXQdLeJ^ZE`ErJX^d 6:896;@ 

Q`LedfWeQ^` 

12324
 

http://www.yalowcharter.org/
mailto:F@GJIDW.EDJFFGEJHDIGJGJEJHDIAJHIKF
mailto:ME0EFG?YO@GJIDW.EHJCJFDGEDJCEJIID
mailto:ADEF?EJEF?@DEJGJFGJ2I@J?EDEEGJGJEJEIDDEEGJF@GJIDW.EDJhTiJORJjkFYJlmnJomKpqJIDJ2I@JGF2JFIGJBEJF??W0FEH
mailto:IGJEDJGF?D?JF??W0FEHJGIJ2I@JB2J2I@DJF@GJIDW.EDJFDEJCW?WBDEJIFJ2I@DJGF?DJAF0E/JRJWDEJEIGADEGWF0JGJW?JGF?DX


NK\JaZZd^\ErJLW]^^_JbQLLQ^`JhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YV 

iMNOOPiJOFPIq 

:9CC9NQJCUOUS:SQU 
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Page 1 of 2 ~ 
~BUILDINGS Certificate ofOccupancy 

CO Number: 200399470F 
This certifies that the premises described herein conforms substantially to the approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document or a copy shall be available for inspection at the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 	~: Bronx Block Number: 02466 Certificate Type: Final 

Address. 116 EAST 169 STREET Lot Number(s): 17 Effective Date: 11/15/2005 

I Building Identification Number (BIN): 2002858 

Building Type: Altered 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

B. 	 Construction classification: OLD CODE: 3 Number of stories: 3 

Building Occupancy Group classification: G 	 Height in feet: 55 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: None 	 Number of dwelling units: 1 

c. 	 Fire Protection Equipment: 
None associated with this filing. 

D. 	 Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

E. 	 This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

[ Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner 	 Commissioner 

B Form 54 (Revised 03/05) 	 DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 
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Page 2 of 2 

~ -BUILDINGS Certificate ofOccupancy 
CO Number: 200399470F 

Maximum Live load 
Floor persons lbs per 
From To permitted sq. ft. 

BAS 53 OG 

I 

OSP 

001 71 OG 

002 	 167 100 

002 	 109 

003 

003 75 100 

003 	 114 

II003 

I 
I 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
Building Building Zoning 
Code Code dwelling or 
habitable occupancy rooming Zoning 
rooms group units use group 

G 3B 3A 

K 

G 	 3B 

G 	 3B 3A 

3A 

J-3 	 38 

2 	 G 3A 3B 
J3 

3B 

2 	 J-3 3B 

END OF SECTION 

Description of use 

RECREATION ROOM. 

ACC. PARKING FOR 37 CARS. 

OFFICES.UTILITIES TOILETS, 
BOILER RM, MAIN LOBBY, 
CLASSROOMS. 

ASSEMBLY HALL, OFFICES, 
LOBBY, TOILETS .. 

CLASSROOMS, PULL OUT 
INSTRUCTION ROOM. 

TOILETS 

CLASSROOMS, TOILETS .. 

OFFICE/LIBRARY. 

RECTORY. 

Borough Commissioner 	 Commissioner 

B Form 54 (Revised 03105) 	 END OF DOCUMENT 2003994701000 3/2812007 1 :01 :36 PM 



 

 
 

 

 
  

                       
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

        

        

    

      

 

   

 
 

                 

    

                                                                                                                           

        

  
 

      

              
  

 

 

 

                

       

            

         

 

 

 

     
  

                             
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 
                                                                                    

                                                                                    

                                                                   

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
9 METROTECH CENTER   BROOKLYN, N.Y. 11201-3857 

BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 

Public Buildings Unit 
DATE: 08.28.2018. 

PREMISES 

The Roslyn Yalow Charter School The Roslyn Yalow Charter School 

116 East 169
th 

Street 116 East 169
th 

Street 

Bronx NY 10452 Bronx NY 10452 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The New York City Fire Department (“FDNY”), Bureau of Fire Prevention, Public Buildings Unit conducted an 

inspection of the above-referenced premises on 12.27.17. 

XXX The inspection did not reveal any violations that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized 

to inspect and enforce. 

Note: Re-inspection conducted on 08.23.2018 resulted in dismissal of Violation Orders E507665 , E507666 

and E507664 issued on 12.27.2017. 

The inspection resulted in issuance of violations of the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations 

that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized to inspect and enforce. 

As of XXXXXX documents were submitted to FDNY as proof of correction, and such correction was deemed 

acceptable to FDNY 

The inspection, and a review of premises records, has disclosed that the premises may not be in compliance with 

the lawful occupancy established by the New York City Department of Buildings. 

This letter shall not be construed to be a permit for, or an approval of the premises. FDNY does not certify that the 

premises is free from any violation for which it has not inspected, in accordance with its standard inspection protocols. 

This letter shall not prevent FDNY from inspecting the premises at a later date, requiring the correction of any 

deficiencies its finds at the premises, and/or issuing violations against the premises for conditions that do not comply with 

the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations. 

Examined by: _________________________________________ 

Tomasz Korbas, Supervising Inspector, PBU 

http:12.27.17


     

   
 

     
   

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

   

 

 

Page 1 of 4 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 220283556F     

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms substantially  to the approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Bronx 

Address: 3480 3RD AVE 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 2118328 

Block Number: 02609 

Lot Number(s): 7501 

Building Type: Altered 

Certificate Type: Final 

Effective Date: 06/06/2013 

This building is subject to this Building Code:  1968 Code 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 

Building Occupancy Group classification: 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: 

R-2 

HAEA 

(2008 Code) 

1-C (1968 Code designation) 

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units: 12 124 113 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
None associated with this filing. 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 
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Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 220283556F     

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 
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Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 220283556F     

Floor 
From To 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq  ft. 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group Description of use 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



              
       

 

          
 

 

 

          
 

 

                  
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

 

   
      

     
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Page 4 of 4 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 220283556F     

Floor 
From To 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group Description of use 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

THIS CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY SHALL ALSO BE CONSIDERED A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE UNDER SECTION #301 OF THE 
MULTIPLE DWELLING LAW. THIS DEVELOPMENT IS PURSUANT TO THE QUALITY HOUSING PROGRAM ZR 28-01. THIS PROPERTY 
CONSISTS OF ONE (1) ZONING LOT (LOT 4) WITH TWO TAX LOTS (TAX LOTS 115 & 120). PARKING EASEMENT ARE FILED WITH CITY 
REGISTER CRFN#'S 2010000297966 2010000297967 NOTE: VACANT SPACE AT FIRST FLOOR SHALL NOT BE OCCUPIED UNLESS AN 
AMENDED CO IS OBTAINED. EXHIBIT I & III HAVE BEEN FILED AND RECORDED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE UNDER CRFN 
#2010000297955 AND CRFN #2010000297954 RESPECTIVELY. THERE SHALL BE TWO (2) PERMANENT ACCESSORY LOADING 
DOCKS AT 535 EAST 167TH STREET FILED UNDER APPLICATION #220036538 WITH A LOADING BERTH GROSS AREA OF 3,265 S.F. 
AND ONE (1) LOADING DOCK AT 3480 3RD AVE WITH A LOADING BERTH GROSS AREA OF 1,280 S.F. NOTE: ENTRANCE TO 
COMBINED PARKING GARAGE FOR 3462 & 3480 THIRD AVENUE IS LOCATED AT 3480 WHEREAS 3462 THIRD AVENUE HAS A TOTAL 
OF 76 SPACES & 3480 THIRD AVENUE HAS A TOTAL OF 50 SPACES; COMBINED TOTAL OF 126 SPACES. 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 220283556/000  6/6/2013 11:50:16 AM 
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cQFHEU 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


Board of Trustees 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year 
then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s June 30, 2017 financial statements, and we expressed 
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 10, 2017. In our 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 26, 2018 on our 
consideration of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 

September 26, 2018
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash 
  Grants and other receivables 
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

$ 

2018 

1,644,895 $ 
259,713 
281,043 

2,185,651 

June 30, 
2017 

1,029,970 
218,932
145,601 

1,394,503 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 320,178 306,460 

OTHER ASSETS
  Deposits 
  Cash in escrow 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 

405,690 
75,000 

2,986,519 $ 

23,070
50,000 

1,774,033 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 
  Deferred revenue 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

$ 132,143 $ 
239,755 
12,163 

384,061 

84,974 
173,968
14,027 

272,969 

DEFERRED LEASE LIABILITY - 183,333 

NET ASSETS
 Unrestricted 
  Temporarily restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 

2,598,458 
4,000 

2,602,458 

2,986,519 $ 

1,313,731
4,000 

1,317,731 

1,774,033 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL  


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and support:
 State and local per pupil
    operating revenue 
  Federal grants 
  State grants 
  Fundraising 
  Contributed goods and services 

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

Unrestricted 

6,864,568 $ 
403,819 
159,864 
9,731 
39,705

7,477,687 

2018 
Temporarily 
restricted 

-$ 
-
-
-
-

-

$ 

Total 

6,864,568 
403,819
159,864
9,731
39,705

7,477,687 

$ 

2017 

Total 

4,508,012 
421,822 
124,805 
9,729 
63,625 

5,127,993 

Expenses:
  Program:
    Regular education 
    Special education 
  Management and general 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

3,861,367 
1,271,160 
1,060,433

6,192,960

-
-
-

-

3,861,367
1,271,160
1,060,433

6,192,960 

3,294,054 
722,065 
694,904 

4,711,023 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,284,727 - 1,284,727 416,970 

Net assets at beginning of year 
NET ASSETS 

AT END OF YEAR 

1,313,731

2,598,458 $ 

 4,000  

 4,000  $ $ 

1,317,731

2,602,458 $ 

900,761 

1,317,731 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel
  Instructional personnel
  Non-instructional personnel
Total salaries and wages

No. of 
Positions 

13 37.5 

3.5 
54.0 

$ 

Regular 
Education 

     455,986 
            1,747,837 
                 82,641 
            2,286,464 

Special 
Education 

$ 103,040 

636,844 

20,366 
760,250 

Program Services 

$ 

Sub-total 

559,026 

2,384,681 

103,007 
3,046,714 

$ 

Year Ended June 30, 
2018 

Management 
and 

Fundraising General 

-

$ 381,392 

-

-

-

5,336 
-

386,728 

Supporting Services 

$ 

Sub-total 

381,392 

-5,336 

386,728 

$ 

Total 

940,418 
             2,384,681 

108,343 
             3,433,442 

$ 

2017 

Total 

700,804 

1,792,305 

122,596 

             2,615,705 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes
Retirement
Legal services
Accounting/Audit services
Other Purchased/Professional/Consulting Services
Building and Land Rent / Lease
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies/Materials
Equipment/Furnishings
Staff development
Marketing/Recruitment
Technology
Food service
Student services
Office expense
Depreciation and amortization
Other

 $ 

                402,056 
                 13,183 

-
-    158,025 

               477,256 
                 72,123 
                  16,756 

41,358 
                132,779 
                   1,022 
                  91,014 
                  65,006 
                  61,930 
                   1,124 
                 19,072 
                 22,197 

-
2 3,861,367 $ 

133,684 

4,383

 -

-67,893 

158,688 

23,981 
                    5,571 

13,751 

28,650 

340 
20,829 

20,845                   20,592 

241 
4,082                     7,380 

-

-

1,271,160 $ 

535,740 

17,566 

-

-

                225,918 

635,944 

96,104 
22,327 55,109 

161,429 

1,362 111,843 

85,851 
82,522 

1,365 
23,154 
29,577 

-
2 

5,132,527 $ 

-
-

-

-
-

-
-
-

- -

-

- -

- -

-
-

-

$ 

68,002 

2,230 133,319 
151,445 

26,728
 80,723
 12,198 

2,835 
6,995 

-173 1,922 
9,895 
10,476 

-
-
34,434 
128,460 

3,870 

1,060,433 $ 

68,002 

2,230 133,319 151,445 

26,728 
80,723 

                  12,198 

2,835 

6,995 

-

173 

1,922 

9,895 

10,476 

-

-

34,434 128,460 

3,870 

1,060,433 $ 

603,742 

19,796 
133,319 
151,445 
252,646 
716,667 
108,302 

25,162 
62,104 
161,429 

1,535 113,765 

95,746 
92,998 

1,365 
23,154 
64,011 
128,460 

3,872 6,192,960 $ 

421,574 
8,375 
13,704 
171,801 
151,122 
716,667 
48,460 
24,575 
53,150 
52,980 
4,949 
87,715 
98,510 
79,511 
792 

15,704 
44,583 
100,923 
223

4,711,023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
    provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 
      Donation of property and equipment 
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables 
        Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
        Deposits 
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
        Accrued payroll and benefits 
        Deferred revenue 
        Deferred lease liability 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment 
  Increase in cash in escrow 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 

Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

2018 2017 

1,284,727 416,970$ 

128,460 100,923
(39,705) (55,255)

(40,781) 469,029
(135,442) (94,386)
(382,620) -
47,169 32,971
65,787 123,515
(1,864) 1,885
(183,333) 16,666 

742,398 1,012,318 

(102,473) (97,849)
(25,000) (25,000) 

(127,473) (122,849) 

614,925 889,469 

1,029,970 140,501 

1,644,895 1,029,970 $ 

Year ended June 30, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017)
	

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School (the “Charter School”) is an educational corporation that operates as a charter 
school in Bronx, New York. The Charter School engages its students in a process of inquiry. The students are 
equipped with the necessary skills to lead fulfilling personal and professional lives, including a developed sense 
of self, the ability to think in innovative and flexible ways, and the inspiration to make a positive impact on their 
community. On June 24, 2014 the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York granted the 
Charter School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration on June 30, 
2020.  

Financial Statement presentation 
The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  The Charter 
School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: 
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 

These classes of net assets are defined as follows: 

Permanently restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be 
fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Charter School. The Charter School had no permanently 
restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Temporarily restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled 
and removed by actions of the Charter School pursuant to those stipulations. The Charter School had $4,000 
in temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Unrestricted – The net assets over which the Governing Board has discretionary control to use in carrying on 
the Charter School’s operations in accordance with the guidelines established by the Charter School. The 
Board may designate portions of the current unrestricted net assets for specific purposes, projects or investment. 

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter School’s charter status and based on the 
number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. 

Contributions 
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily or permanently restricted support depending on 
the existence of any donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and expended in the same year for a 
specific purpose is classified as unrestricted revenue. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017)
	

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. 

Cash 
Cash balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York and are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 at each institution. In the normal course of business, the cash account 
balances at any given time may exceed insured limits. However, the Charter School has not experienced any 
losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash.  

Cash in escrow 
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement.  
The agreement requires $25,000 be placed in escrow each of the first three years of operations and a balance of 
$75,000 be maintained to fund any audit and legal expenses incurred should the Charter School cease operations 
and dissolve. 

Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual 
receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used 
reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no allowance 
for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line 
method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which range 
from three to seven years.  Leasehold improvements are being amortized over the term of the lease. 

Deposits 

Deposits are made up of payments made to third parties in connection with facility lease agreements.
	

Contributed goods and services 
The Charter School received transportation services, a nurse, speech therapist, occupational therapist, physical 
therapist, food supplies and services and lease assistance from the local district.  The Charter School was unable 
to determine a value for these services. 

The Charter School received contributed legal services which were valued at $8,370 for the year ended June 30, 
2017. There were no contributed legal services received for the year ended June 30, 2018. These amounts are 
included in contributed goods and services in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017)
	

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

The Charter School received donated property and equipment during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
Donated goods are valued at the fair value of the items at the date of donation. The Charter School valued the 
goods received during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 at $39,705 and $55,255, respectively. This amount 
is included in contributed goods and services in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net 
assets and in property and equipment on the statement of financial position.  

Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years ended 
June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2018 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS.  Management of the Charter 
School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it will not recognize any liability for 
unrecognized tax benefits. 

Marketing costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $95,700 and $98,500 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  

Deferred revenue 
The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, at 
which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Deferred lease liability 
The Charter School leases its facility. The lease contains pre-determined fixed escalation of the base rent. In 
accordance with GAAP, the Charter School recognizes the related rent expense on a straight-line basis over three 
years which is the lease term and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts 
payable under the lease as a deferred lease liability. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through September 26, 2018, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted, except as disclosed in Note H. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017)
	

NOTE B: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

June 30, 
2018 2017 

Furniture and fixtures 262,528 $ $ 195,383 
Leasehold improvements 90,571 69,686 
Office equipment 32,901 31,801 
Computers and equipment 208,892 155,844 

594,892 452,714 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 274,714 146,254 

320,178 $ $ 306,460 

NOTE C: RENT EXPENSE 

The Charter School signed a lease extension for its facility from a third party renewing an existing lease to a term 
of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021,at fixed amount of $105,000 per month. On June 5, 2018, the Charter 
School signed a lease agreement from a third party for an additional facility to facilitate the opening of a second 
school. This lease commences on July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021, at $56,800 per month for the first year, 
and a three percentage increase the next two years. Total rental expense was approximately $717,000 for both 
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The future minimum payments on these agreements are approximately as 
follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 $ 1,942,000 
2020 1,962,000 
2021 1,984,000 

Total $ 5,888,000 

NOTE D: OPERATING LEASE 

The Charter School signed an agreement to lease office equipment in August 2015 and then amended the 
agreement in June 2016. The term of the amended agreement is through May 2019. Future expected minimum 
payments for this lease is approximately $12,000 for 2019. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017)
	

NOTE E: CONTINGENCIES 


Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in disallowance 
of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that such 
disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no 
amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 

In August 2016, a complaint was served on the School. The Plaintiffs are claiming negligence, recklessness, and 
carelessness and gross negligence. The outcome of the suit is currently undeterminable; therefore, no amount 
has been accrued in the accompanying financial statements. 

The claim is being vigorously defended and management believes there will be no material adverse effect on the 
School’s financial position as a result of the outcome of this outstanding legal matter.  

NOTE F: CONCENTRATIONS 

Approximately 51% and 48% of grants and other receivables are due from various New York State agencies 
relating to certain grants at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Approximately 47% and 40% of grants and 
other receivables are due from the federal government relating to certain grants at June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, approximately 92% and 88%, respectively, of total operating 
revenue and support came from per-pupil funding provided by the New York City School District. The per-pupil 
rate is set annually by the State based on the school district in which the Charter School’s students are located. 

NOTE G: RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Charter School sponsors a 401(k) retirement plan (the “Plan”) for its employees.  The Plan allows for the 
Charter School to make discretionary contributions to the Plan.  The Charter School contributed approximately 
$19,800 and $8,400 to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

NOTE H: SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In August 2018, the New York State Education Department (NYSED) notified the Charter School that it had 
over-allocated approximately $19,000 in Title IIA funding to the Charter School for the year ended June 30, 
2018. NYSED will reduce the Charter School’s Title IIA funding for a period of up to five years to recoup the 
over-allocated funding.  The Charter School has not accounted for this over-allocated funding as a liability as of 
June 30, 2018. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 


REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
	



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

    
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
   

    
 

 
     

 
       

  
    

 

 
 

 

       
   

 
  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
 

Board of Trustees 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School in a separate letter 
dated September 26, 2018. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Rochester, New York
	
September 26, 2018
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September  26,  2018  

Board of Trustees 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School (the “Charter 
School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable 
possibility exists when the likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as 
follows: 

	 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

	 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

During the course of our audit of the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 we have updated the status of the comments that were included in our letter dated October 10, 2017 
and are included for informational purposes. We did not consider the comments to be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses: 
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Finance Committee 
During our audit we noted there is no formal finance committee. The School’s By-Laws state that the Board shall 
maintain a finance committee with a minimum of 3 members. 

Recommendation 
We recommend a formal finance committee be established and minutes of all Board committees be maintained.  
The current Form 990 inquires if all committee meetings were documented as well as meetings of the 
governing body.  Keeping minutes of all meetings is also an indication of good governance. 

Management response at June 30, 2016 
Management has reviewed and agrees with the recommendation. Management will vote to establish a 
formal finance committee and regularly document committee meetings to be abide by the School’s By-
Laws and promote good governance. 

Status as of June 30, 2017 
During the current year audit, we noted a Finance Committee was created during the fiscal year 2017.  
However, we also noted there were no separate meeting minutes, there was a Finance Committee report 
and within the monthly Board meeting minutes.   

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our current year audit, we noted Finance Committee meeting minutes were recorded at each 
meeting. 

* * * * * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management and the Board of Trustees and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Shelby Stenson 
or Ryan Snyder. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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September 26, 2018
	

Finance Committee 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School as of June 30, 2018 and for year then 
ended and have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2018. Professional standards require that we advise 
you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated June 1, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School solely for the purpose of determining our audit 
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

We have provided our comments regarding other matters noted during our audit in a separate letter to you. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Rosalyn Yalow Charter School is included in Note A to the financial statements. 
There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their 
application during 2018. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, 
to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of 
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance 
or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses 
to program expenses, management and general expenses, and fundraising expenses and the collectability of grants 
receivable. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they 
are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s 
financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of the financial 
statements. 
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Identified or Suspected Fraud  

We have not identified or obtained information that indicates that fraud may have occurred.  

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We are pleased to report we encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the 
performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. The below schedule summarizes an uncorrected financial 
statement misstatement whose effects in the current and prior periods, as determined by management, are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Assets Liabilities 
Reference Increase Increase Revenue 
No. Description (Decrease) (Decrease) (Expense) 

To accrue vacation earned and carried over to
	
following school year. $ - $ 13,049 $ (13,049)
	

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were 
brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None of the misstatements identified by 
us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report 
no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter.  
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Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Rosalyn Yalow Charter School, we generally discuss a 
variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions 
affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the 
matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s auditors. 

* * * * * 

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Shelby Stenson or Ryan Snyder will be happy to 
meet with you at your convenience. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and 
management of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #9 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Alec Diacou 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: Mengel Metzger Barr & Co., LLP 
School Audit Contact Name: Michelle Cain 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter 

Management Letter Response N/A 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) The school did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 





     
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

1,644,895 
252,307 

7,406 
281,043 

-
-

2,185,651 

320,178 
75,000 

405,690 
-

800,868 

2,986,519 

$ 

$ 

2017 

1,029,970 
218,932 

-
145,601 

-
23,070 

1,417,573 

306,460 
50,000 

-
-

356,460 

1,774,033 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

132,143 
239,755 

-
-
-

12,163 
-

384,061 

-
-
-
-
-

384,061 

$ 

$ 

84,974 
173,968 

-
-
-

14,027 
-

272,969 

-
183,333 

-
-

183,333 

456,302 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$2,598,458.25 
4,000 

-
2,602,458 

$ 1,313,731 
4,000 

-
1,317,731 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,986,519 1,774,033 
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Rosalyn Yalow Charter School
 
Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

2018 2017 

Unrestricted Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed $ 5,349,981 $ 5,349,981 $ 3,480,800 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 614,587 614,587 328,247 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 900,000 900,000 698,965 
Federal Grants 403,819 403,819 421,822 
State and City Grants 159,864 159,864 124,805 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 7,428,251 - 7,428,251 5,054,639 

EXPENSES 
Program Services
�

Regular Education $ 3,861,364
� $ 3,861,364 $ 3,294,054 
Special Education 1,271,159 1,271,159 722,065 
Other Programs - - - -

Total Program Services 5,132,522 5,132,522 4,016,119 
Management and general 1,060,437 1,060,437 694,904 
Fundraising -
TOTAL EXPENSES 6,192,959 6,192,959 4,711,023 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 1,235,292 - 1,235,292 343,616 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income $ - $ -
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 9,731 - 9,731 9,729 
Investments - - - -
Donated Services 39,704 - 39,704 63,625 
Other Support and Revenue 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 49,435 - 49,435 73,354 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal $ - $ - $ - $ -
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,284,728 - 1,284,728 416,970 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 1,313,731 $ 4,000 $ 1,317,731 $ 900,761 
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - - -

-

-
-

$ -



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 2,598,459 $ 4,000 $ 2,602,459 $ 1,317,731 



     
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 1,284,728 $ 416,970 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 128,461 100,923 
Grants Receivable (40,781) 469,029 
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses (135,442) (94,386) 
Accounts Payable 47,168 32,971 
Accrued Expenses - -
Accrued Liabilities 65,787 123,515 
Contributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue (1,864) 1,885 
Interest payments - -
Other (39,705) (55,255) 
Other (183,333) 16,666 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,125,019 $ 1,012,318 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ $ 
Purchase of equipment (102,474) (97,849) 
Other (407,620) (25,000) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (510,094) $ (122,849) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt -
Other -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 614,925 $ 889,469 
Cash at beginning of year 1,029,970 140,501 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,644,895 $ 1,029,970 



     
     
     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2018 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 
Education 

Other 
Education 

Total 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

Total 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 
Total Expenses 

13.00 
37.50 

3.50 
54.00 

$ 
455,986 

1,747,837 
82,641 

2,286,464 
402,056 

13,183 
-
-
-

158,025 

477,256 
72,123 
16,756 
41,358 

132,779 
1,022 

91,014 
65,006 
61,930 

1,124 
19,072 
22,197 

-
-

$ 3,861,364 

$ 
103,040 
636,844 

20,366 
760,250 
133,684 

4,383 
-
-
-

67,893 

158,688 
23,981 

5,571 
13,751 
28,649 

340 
20,829 
20,845 
20,592 

241 
4,082 
7,380 

-
-

$ 1,271,159 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

$ 

559,025 
2,384,681 

103,007 
3,046,714 

535,739 
17,566 

-
-
-

225,918 

635,944 
96,103 
22,328 
55,109 

161,428 
1,362 

111,842 
85,850 
82,522 

1,365 
23,154 
29,577 

-
-

5,132,523 

$ 

$ 

$ 
- 381,393 
- -
- 5,336 
- 386,728 
- 68,003 
- 2,230 
- -
- 133,319 
- 151,445 
- 26,728 

- 80,722 
- 12,199 
- 2,834 
- 6,995 
- -
- 173 
- 1,923 
- 9,896 
- 10,475 
- -
- -
- 34,435 
- 128,461 
- 3,872 
- $ 1,060,437 

$ 

$ 

381,393 
-

5,336 
386,728 

68,003 
2,230 

-
133,319 
151,445 

26,728 

80,722 
12,199 

2,834 
6,995 

-
173 

1,923 
9,896 

10,475 
-
-

34,435 
128,461 
3,872 

1,060,437 



Rosalyn Yalow Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

     
     
     

2017

 Total 

$ 
940,418 

2,384,681 
108,343 

3,433,442 
603,742 

19,796 
-

133,319 
151,445 
252,646 

$ 
700,804 

1,792,305 
122,596 

2,615,705 
421,573 

8,375 
-

13,704 
171,801 
151,122 

$ 

716,667 
108,302 

25,162 
62,104 

161,428 
1,535 

113,765 
95,746 
92,997 

1,365 
23,154 
64,012 

128,461 
3,872 

6,192,960 $ 

716,667 
48,460 
24,575 
53,150 
52,979 

4,950 
87,715 
98,510 
79,511 

792 
15,705 
44,583 

100,922 
224 

4,711,025 
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September  26,  2018  

Board of Trustees 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School (the “Charter 
School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable 
possibility exists when the likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as 
follows: 

	 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

	 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

During the course of our audit of the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 we have updated the status of the comments that were included in our letter dated October 10, 2017 
and are included for informational purposes. We did not consider the comments to be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses: 

- 1 -



 

 

 
 

    
 

 
 

   

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

      
 
 

 
 

  
    

 
        
 

 
 
      

Finance Committee 
During our audit we noted there is no formal finance committee. The School’s By-Laws state that the Board shall 
maintain a finance committee with a minimum of 3 members. 

Recommendation 
We recommend a formal finance committee be established and minutes of all Board committees be maintained.  
The current Form 990 inquires if all committee meetings were documented as well as meetings of the 
governing body.  Keeping minutes of all meetings is also an indication of good governance. 

Management response at June 30, 2016 
Management has reviewed and agrees with the recommendation. Management will vote to establish a 
formal finance committee and regularly document committee meetings to be abide by the School’s By-
Laws and promote good governance. 

Status as of June 30, 2017 
During the current year audit, we noted a Finance Committee was created during the fiscal year 2017.  
However, we also noted there were no separate meeting minutes, there was a Finance Committee report 
and within the monthly Board meeting minutes.   

Status as of June 30, 2018 
During our current year audit, we noted Finance Committee meeting minutes were recorded at each 
meeting. 

* * * * * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management and the Board of Trustees and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Shelby Stenson 
or Ryan Snyder. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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September 26, 2018
	

Finance Committee 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School as of June 30, 2018 and for year then 
ended and have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2018. Professional standards require that we advise 
you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated June 1, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School solely for the purpose of determining our audit 
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

We have provided our comments regarding other matters noted during our audit in a separate letter to you. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Rosalyn Yalow Charter School is included in Note A to the financial statements. 
There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their 
application during 2018. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, 
to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of 
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance 
or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses 
to program expenses, management and general expenses, and fundraising expenses and the collectability of grants 
receivable. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they 
are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s 
financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of the financial 
statements. 
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Identified or Suspected Fraud  

We have not identified or obtained information that indicates that fraud may have occurred.  

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We are pleased to report we encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the 
performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. The below schedule summarizes an uncorrected financial 
statement misstatement whose effects in the current and prior periods, as determined by management, are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Assets Liabilities 
Reference Increase Increase Revenue 
No. Description (Decrease) (Decrease) (Expense) 

To accrue vacation earned and carried over to
	
following school year. $ - $ 13,049 $ (13,049)
	

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were 
brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None of the misstatements identified by 
us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report 
no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter.  
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Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Rosalyn Yalow Charter School, we generally discuss a 
variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions 
affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the 
matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s auditors. 

* * * * * 

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Shelby Stenson or Ryan Snyder will be happy to 
meet with you at your convenience. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and 
management of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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Make check 
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Form 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an 
(Rev. January 2017) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 1545-1709

Department of the Treasury 
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b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and 

estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b $ 0. 
c Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, 

by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c $ 0. 
Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment 
instructions. 
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Citibank CBO Services 046 001/R1/20F000 

P.O. Box 6201 046 
Sioux Falls, SD 57117-6201 CITIBANK, N. A. 

Account 

Statement Period 
ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL Oct 1 - Oct 31, 2017 
116 EAST 169TH STREET Relationship Manager 
BRONX  NY 10452
 Citibusiness Service Center 

(877) 528-0990 
Page 1 of 4 

CitiBusiness®  ACCOUNT AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2017
 

Relationship Summary: 

Checking $2,971,154.88 
Savings ----­
Checking Plus ----­

Checking Balance 

CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking $75,000.00 
CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking $2,896,154.88 

Total Checking at Citibank $2,971,154.88
 

SERVICE CHARGE SUMMARY FROM SEPTEMBER 1, 2017 THRU SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
 

Type of Charge No./Units Price/Unit Amount 

STREAMLINED CHECKING # 

Average Daily Collected Balance 

Total Charges for Services 

$66,334.96 

$0.00 

Net Service Charge $0.00 

STREAMLINED CHECKING # 

Average Daily Collected Balance 

DEPOSIT SERVICES 
CHECKS, DEP ITEMS/TICKETS, ACH 

**WAIVE 
68 .4500 

$2,478,163.50 

30.60 

Total Charges for Services $0.00 

Net Service Charge $0.00 

CHECKING ACTIVITY
 

CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking
 

Beginning Balance: $75,000.00 
Ending Balance: $75,000.00 

CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking 

Beginning Balance: $2,189,125.14
 
Ending Balance: $2,896,154.88
 

http:2,896,154.88
http:2,189,125.14
http:75,000.00
http:75,000.00
http:2,971,154.88
http:2,896,154.88
http:75,000.00
http:2,971,154.88
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Rosalyn Yalow Charter School
�
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2018
�

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019
�
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

6,382,026 2,777,934 
6,733,788 1,888,877 
(351,763) 889,057 

396 60 
396 60 

OTHER 

-
-
-

FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

- 1,149,871 
- 1,620,170 
- (470,299) 

TOTAL 

10,309,831 
10,242,835 

66,996 
456 
456 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
District of Location $15,307.00 
School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

4,757,887 1,360,369 
- -
- -
- -
- -

4,757,887 1,360,369 

-
-
-
-
-

- 861,736 
- -
- -
- -
- -

861,736 

6,979,992 
-
-
-
-

6,979,992 

Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
Other 

Other State Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

Other Federal Revenue 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 926,465 

- -
- -

1,415,099 400,132 
6,172,986 2,686,966 

- 31,200 
124,400 35,568 

7,437 2,126 
- -

- -
- -
- -

131,837 68,895 

52,828 15,104 
24,375 6,969 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

77,203 22,074 

6,382,026 2,777,934 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- 250,274 

1,112,011 

- -
- 22,531 
- 1,347 
- -

- -
- -
- -

23,878 

- 9,568 
- 4,415 
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

13,983 

1,149,871 

926,465 

-
-

2,065,505 
9,971,962 

31,200 
182,500 

10,910 
-

-
-
-

224,610 

77,500 
35,759 

-
-
-
-
-

113,259 

10,309,831 
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EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS 

Executive Management
�
Instructional Management
�
Deans, Directors & Coordinators
�

CFO / Director of Finance
�

Operation / Business Manager
�
Administrative Staff
�

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular
�
Teachers - SPED
�

Substitute Teachers
�

Teaching Assistants
�

Specialty Teachers
�

Aides
�

Therapists & Counselors
�

Other - Staffing
�

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 

32.00 
6.00 

-
4.00 

13.00 
3.50 

-
-

59 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse 
Librarian 
Custodian 
Security 
Other - Non-Instruct 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Retirement / Pension 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit 
Legal 
Management Company Fee 
Nurse Services 
Food Service / School Lunch 
Payroll Services 
Special Ed Services 
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 

No. of Positions 
1.00 124,377 18,845 - - 15,914 159,135 
4.00 379,360 57,479 - - - 436,839 
3.00 217,396 32,939 - - 27,815 278,150 

- - - - - - -
1.00 20,000 10,000 - - 70,000 100,000 
9.00 - - - - 550,394 550,394 

18 741,133 119,263 664,122 1,524,518 

1,951,125 295,625 - - - 2,246,750 
- 485,000 - - - 485,000 
- - - - - -

150,237 22,763 - - - 173,000 
544,066 82,434 - - - 626,500 

51,237 7,763 - - - 59,000 
- - - - - -

222,522 33,716 - - - 256,238 
2,919,187 927,301 3,846,488 

320,844 91,735 - - 58,110 470,689 
445,693 127,432 - - 80,723 653,848 

57,344 16,396 - - 10,386 84,126 
823,881 235,563 149,219 1,208,663 

- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -

2.00 49,000 14,000 - - 7,000 70,000 
- - - - - - -
- - - - - 700 700 
2 49,000 14,000 7,700 70,700 

79 3,709,320 1,060,564 671,822 5,441,706 

4,533,201 1,296,127 821,042 6,650,369 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

165,000 
100,000 

-
-
-

165,000 
100,000 

-
-
-

4,908 1,403 - - 889 7,200 
- 15,850 - - - 15,850 
- - - - - -

133,588 
138,496 

38,195 
55,449 

- - 24,195 
290,084 

195,979 
484,029 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Supplies & Materials other 
Equipment / Furniture 
Telephone 3,828 1,095 - - 693 5,616 
Technology 92,156 24,540 - - 14,253 130,949 

- - - - 20,500 20,500 
129,311 19,593 - - - 148,904 

- 4,500 - - - 4,500 
89,447 13,553 - - - 103,000 

- - - - - -
4,090 1,169 - - 741 6,000 
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Student Testing & Assessment 
Field Trips 
Transportation (student) 
Student Services - other 
Office Expense 
Staff Development 
Staff Recruitment 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 
School Meals / Lunch 
Travel (Staff) 
Fundraising 
Other - Operations 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

33,208 
3,474 

-
9,553 

29,924 
137,124 
102,247 

4,342 

5,032 
526 

-
1,447 
8,556 

20,776 
29,234 

658 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

51,374 
-

18,519 
-

38,240 
4,000 

-
11,000 
89,854 

157,900 
150,000 

5,000 
2,605 395 - - - 3,000 
1,363 390 - - 247 2,000 

- - - - - -
-

642,673 
-

131,463 
- - 50,250 

156,577 
50,250 

930,713 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance
�

Janitorial
�
Building and Land Rent / Lease
�

Repairs & Maintenance
�

Equipment / Furniture
�

Security
�

Utilities
�

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

30,087 8,602 - - 5,449 44,138 
- - - - - -

1,303,308 372,640 - - 236,052 1,912,000 
13,633 3,898 - - 2,469 20,000 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -

72,391 20,698 - - 13,111 106,200 
1,419,418 405,838 257,081 2,082,338 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - 95,386 95,386 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,733,788 1,888,877 1,620,170 10,242,835 

NET INCOME (351,763) 889,057 - - (470,299) 66,996 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL ENROLLED 

396 60 456 
-
-
-
-

396 60 456 

16,116 46,299 -

17,005 31,481 -

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District of Location
�

School District 2 (Enter Name)
�
School District 3 (Enter Name)
�
School District 4 (Enter Name)
�
School District 5 (Enter Name)
�

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 



 

        

      

   

         

        
    

  

         

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Enrollment: GenEd 456 @ FY19 rate $15,307 

SpEd @ 60 students 

NYSTL, NYSSL, NYSLIBL, Facilities funding, Non-Per Pupil Additional State Funding 

Based on $1,000 for students in over 60% category. 
Based on enrollment x $500/student 
Title II funding 

Contributions 
Erate 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 



 
       

       

  
            

    

     
 

 
       

 

 

   

    

 
 

   

 
 

 

      

Executive Director 
Principal, Dean of Students, Dean of Instruction x2 
Director of Assessment, Literacy Coach, Singapore Math Specialist 

Director of Operations 
Office Clerk x3, Office Manager, Fiscal Associate, Front Desk Support, Asst to Principal 
& Dir Assessment, Admin bonuses 

Teachers x22, teacher social workers x10 
SpEd teachers 

Teaching Assistants 
Response to Intervention x4, Fencing instructors, Chess instructors 
Part-time aides 

Stipends, bonuses 

Custodians 

Bonus 

Taxes 
Benefits 
401k match + fees 

Annual Audit, Financial Management Consultant 
Legal 

Payroll fees 
SpEd collaborative 

Academic consultant, Arts consultant 

Board expenses 
Supplies, NYSTL/NYSSL/NYSLIB 

Textbooks 

Non-capitalized furniture 
Phone 
Student software, internet, technology services, website maintenance 



  
 

  
    

   

 
 

 
 

  

   

Testing & assessment 
Field trips 

Uniforms, parent outreach 
Suuplies, postage, printing/copying, staff events 
Professional Development, tuition reimbursements 
Recruitment 
Recruitment, marketing 
School food 
Staff travel 
Fundraising consultant 
Bank fees, contingency 

Insurance 

Rent (including deferred rent) 
R&M 

Utilities 

Depreciation 
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
did not participate in 

discussion) 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 
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William Jackson

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee
*

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name): 

_______________Rosalyn Yalow Charter School_______________________ 

1.	*List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2.	*Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes _X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	*Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	*Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in
transaction and 
relationship to

yourself 

P lea  se  wri  t  e  “N  one”  i  f  a  pp  
NONE  

l i  c  ab  l e . 	  Do  no t  l e  ave  t h i s  s  pace  b lank . 	  



       
       

            
          

             
            

            
        

         
         

          

 
  

                
              

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 

 
  

  
 
 

 
  

 
 

    
  

  
    

  
   

    

 
  

  
 

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	None

5.	*Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P lea se  wri t e  “None”  i

NONE  

f  app l i cab le . 	  Do  not  l e ave  th i s  s pace  b lank .  

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

7/25/18 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below wi 

Business Tel ________ 

Business Ad _______ 

E-mail Addre _______ 

Home Teleph ________ 

Home Addres ______ 











Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: 
Shirley J. Saunders 

Name of Gharter School Education Gorporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.9., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Secretary 

ls the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes X No 

lf Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

2. ls the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

Yes _X_No 

lf Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. ldentify each interesUtransaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. lf there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial Steps taken to avoid Name of person 
lnteresUTransaction a conflict of interest, holding interest or 

(e.9., did not vote, engaging in 
did not participate in transaction and 

discussion) relationship to 
vourself 

-Ylnv- 'rtfTts­7tn,u None pl TASe7a{il'bblank 



7

4. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other
relationship. lf you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s)
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such
organization and the school(s). lf there was no financial interest, write None.

Shirlev J Saunders

Signature Date 0712018

P/ease note that this is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of lnformation Law. Personal contact information
provided below will be redacted.

Organization
conducting

business with
the school(s)

Nature of
business

conducted

Approximate
value of the

business
conducted

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member
of household holding an

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the
nature of the interest

Steps Taken
to Avoid

Conflict of
lnterest

blease vvritlo)u/ te n'None" 
i.'7?*tztz
t applicable,2'Lu"1?, Do not leave this space

7t-Ozts-
blank.
zLr*
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL
 
Board of Trustees Meeting
 

Minutes
 
Tuesday, July 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m.
 

116 E. 169th St.
 
Bronx, New York 10463 


Trustees Present 

Miguel Balbuena, John W. Carr, Ivan Lee, and Benjamin Yalow. Sandra Hayes and Bill Jackson 
participated via Skype. Alec Diacou, Executive Director, was also in attendance. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was chaired by John Carr and called to order at 6:40 p.m.  A quorum was present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda was adopted. 

Approval of Minutes 

Minutes for the meeting held on June 20, 2017, were unanimously approved. 

Employee Medical Benefits for FY2017-18 

The board reviewed the school’s current health benefit plans and rates with 24 potential new plans 
and plan rates for the September 1, 2017, renewal. Mr. Diacou recommended 3 plans from Yalow’s 
current provider Oxford/United Health Care. The rate increase in FY17-18 for Yalow’s benchmark 
Oxford Metro Gold plan would be 5.25%. 32 employees are currently enrolled among the three 
plans the school offers. The FY17-18 budget assumes 45 employees will enroll (40% increase), and 
$342,200 is budgeted. Mr. Diacou recommended that the school subsidize 90% of the annual 
premium for the individual employee category and proportionate increases in Yalow’s subsidy 
payments for other plan classifications compared with last year. 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors approved the following 
resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the Executive Director to
 
offer employees the Oxford Metro Gold Gated health plan  (specialist referrals
 
required) and subsidize $641.95 of the individual premium and proportionate increases
 
over FY16-17 for other enrollment plan classifications. Metro Gold Non-Gated
 
(specialist referrals not required) and Freedom Gold plans shall be offered to employees
 
as “buy-up” health plans options.
 

Mr. Diacou reviewed the current status of dental, vision, life, and disability plan benefit proposals 
from insurance carriers solicited by MDG Benefit Solutions. Negotiations continue. Yalow’s 
estimated cost for these 4 plans is relatively minor ($38,800 in aggregate). 
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Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the Executive Director to 
enter into agreements with dental, vision, life, and disability plan benefit carriers on 
substantially the same or better terms than currently presented. 

Changes to Employee Handbook 

Following a webinar on the laws regarding employee handbooks sponsored by the NYC Charter 
School Center conducted by Richard Kass of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLC, one of Yalow's 
attorneys, Mr. Diacou asked Mr. Kass to review Yalow’s Employee Handbook for compliance with 
NYS and federal law and court interpretations of labor law. Proposed changes and the rationale for 
each change were discussed by the board. The board also considered a proposal increasing the 
number of Paid Time Off (PTO) Days for teachers from 5 to 7 days. Discussion ensued; several 
alternatives were discussed. Mr. Carr suggested permitting teachers to roll over unused PTO days 
from the one academic year until December 31 of following academic year, which was agreed upon. 

Resolved: That the Board of Directors approves the proposed revisions to the 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Employee Handbook, as amended, subject to review 
by the New York State Education Department. 

Relocation Update: Civic Builders 

In a telephone call from David Umansky on July 5, 2017, Mr. Diacou was informed that 
Civic Builders has declined to underwrite the school for the previously proposed $25 
million building project at 411 Wales Ave. Following completion of their due diligence 
process, Mr. Umansky cited four reasons for Civic Builders’ decision: absenteeism, teacher 
turnover, the change in school principal, and the need for clearer communication between 
the board, Mr. Diacou, and Principal Belle. Mr. Umansky left open the possibility that Civic 
Builders will reconsider its underwriting decision next year, and said they’d refund the 
$15,000 fee previously paid by Yalow. 

Mr. Diacou informed the board that NYSED is aware of Civic Builders’ decision and that 
NYSED has scheduled a conference call with Mr. Carr and Mr. Diacou to discuss the 
school’s options for relocation. 

Finance Report 

Mengel Metzger Barr & Co., LLP, Yalow’s auditors, have been preparing the school’s audit and will 
be conduct its on-site review August 7 and 8, 2017. The school’s June 30 financial statements will 
not be finalized until the end of August because adjustments to expense and revenue items will 
continue throughout the summer. 

Executive Director Report 

No progress was made at the meeting with Walker Memorial on June 22 to discuss lease extension 
to June 30, 2019, and reimbursement to Yalow for unpaid building improvements made by Yalow. 
Mr. Diacou sent a letter to Walker reminding the church of the mutual benefit to Walker and the 
school of resolving these matters expeditiously. On July 17, a church representative informed Mr. 
Diacou that Walker has received proposals to buy the school building and is considering all options. 
The church asked Mr. Diacou to provide an accounting, by August 4, of all building improvements 
(circa $110K) made by Yalow to bring the school into proper working condition following the 
departure of the building’s previous tenant, Grand Concourse Charter School. 
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Teacher hiring progress report update: 7 teacher-social workers needed; 5 hired to date. 2 lead 
teachers needed; 2 hired to date. 3 special ed teachers needed; no hires. 2 ESL teachers needed; no 
hires. 

Applying for a new Management Liability insurance policy to replace current Errors and Omissions 
(E&O) carrier (Allied World). 

New Business 

Ms. Hayes requested that Principal Belle provide a monthly report to the board, preferably in 
person. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 

Approved by Board of 
Trustees on September 19, 2017 
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THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 
116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Tuesday, August 15, 2017, 6:30 p.m.
 
116 East 169th Street
 

Bronx, New York 10452
 

Trustees Present 
Skype – M. Rosen 
Ivan Lee, Sandra Hayes, Shirley Saunders, Miguel Balbuena, Gregoria Feliciano, Principal Letta A. 
Belle, Executive Director Alec Diacou. Absent: John Carr and William Jackson 

Call to Order 
The meeting was chaired by Sandra Hayes and called to order at 6:30 p.m. A quorum was present. 

Adoption of Agenda 
The agenda was adopted. 

Approval of Minutes 
The minutes for the meeting held on July 18, 2017, was tabled to be approved on Sept. 19, 2017.
 

Board resolution to approve CSBM’s FY17-18 contract – explanation and discussion was had and the 

contract was duly approved.
 

Board resolution to approve BAE’s FY17-18 program budget – Approved.
 

Board resolution requesting monthly reports from the principal (or her representative) and the dean of
 
students (or his representative), particularly regarding absenteeism and correct student performance
 
data. Much discussion ensued. Resolution was postponed. 


Finance Report, (CSBM)
 
Michael and Collin will send all information from the auditors to the Board. Collin said we are
 
functioning within our budget with a small savings and Michael agrees. Our July report is accurate and
 
we will close 2016-17 budget.
 

Principal Report 
See hand out of August 15, 2017. Principal Belle is requesting a Dean of Instruction – someone 
responsible for data and attention to new teachers/social workers and their needs/assessments. Much 
attention focused on changing the role of the literacy coach. Principal Belle mentioned the board could 
be provided with access to NWEA student assessment data for math. Ms. Belle discussed in great detail 
the progress toward charter goals and that she is moving on with new teacher orientation that she is 
proposing. 

Executive Director Report 

See handout of August 15, 2017. Alec has been keeping us updated on replacing insurance carriers. 
Nova service was recommended to us to replace Travelers, which is exiting our line of business. The 
cost for FY17-18 will be $13,727. Still trying to obtain flood insurance. Still looking for a new Error 
and Omission policy (E&O) to replace Allied World. We will be negotiating to extend our lease with 
Walker Memorial and to have outstanding repairs made to the roof. We will continue to fill open staff 
positions. 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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Executive Session 

The board went into executive session to discuss a personnel matter. 

New Business 
None. 

Public Comment 
None. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 

Submitted by 
Shirley Saunders, Secretary 
Approved by Board of Trustees on September 19, 2017 



     

       
    

   

 

    

 

      

   

    

 

 

  

              
           

 

   

              

 

   

    
 

  

    
  

 

  

         
 

      

     
 

    

           
 

    

                   

                
 

 

   

         

              

      

    
 

                

                  
               

       

 
               

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting
 
Minutes
 

Tuesday, October 17, 2017, 6:30 p.m.
 
th

116 East 169 Street 

Bronx, New York 10463 

Trustees Present 

Benjamin Yalow, Sandra Hayes, John Carr, Shirley Saunders (skype – Michael Rosen), Alec Diacou 
Executive Director, Letta Belle Principal, and Yvonne Booker-Byers Director of Assessment. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:45 p.m. A quorum was present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda was adopted. 

Chairman’s comments 

The Chairman requested that we speak with “one” voice when referring to policy and/or procedure to 
avoid confusion. 

Final Audit 

The final audit was duly seconded and unanimously approved. 

Revisions to Student & Family Handbook 

The revisions to the student and family handbook was duly seconded and unanimously approved. 

Charter School Performance Framework 

The Charter School Performance Framework was duly seconded and unanimously approved. 

Finance Report (Michael Rosen) 

A 3 months finance report (Sept. 30) was given by M. Rosen and we were advised that the projection is 

constantly revised. This includes the 10 new staff members Principal Belle requests. This report was 
accepted. 

Executive Director report 

Discussion was had concerning the Church renewing our lease and the possibility of using a second 

campus at St. Michael’s. The issue of splitting the school into 2 locations will have to be explored. Alec 

is continuing to reach out to Mr. Scott to determine our status at the church in obtaining an extension of 

our lease or not. 

Facility plan at St. Paul’s Hall – St. Michael’s would like to obtain a definitive answer as to if we are 

going to lease with them or not. Civic Builders might be willing to work with us on this project. 
However, we cannot sign a lease until we have definitive plans as to how we are going to use the space, 

finances and the status of our present location. 

Furthermore, we cannot sign a least until we submit our proposal to the State for approval.
 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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The Board directs Alec to have a draft proposal for State approval for the Board to review and modify or 
approve. 

Note: The state seems to have a State Package which requires a 60 days clock for lease review.  Sandra 

wants to know 
how many charter schools fail this review? 

Principal Report 

Principal Belle gave a detailed report on 3 cycle Assessment Results of Step Literacy Strategic Teaching 

& Evaluation of Progress, The Attendance Action Plan 2017-2018, and the NWEA and Step Summary 

Data 2016-2017. She also provided us with a Power Point Projection on how to read the statics as to 

where our children are in the Achievement status & Growth Summary with Quadrant Charts. 

Principal Belle also reported she needs an Attendance Clerk which might cost $40,000.00. She also 

requested monies for the following: Holiday Party $3,000.00; and Discretionary Funds $5,000.00. (See 
Financial Report for additional staff). 

We may also begin exploring programs to assist our teachers who might have language problems - if 
needed. 

New Business 

Public Comments 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 

Submitted by 

Shirley Saunders, secretary 

Approved by Board of 

Trustees on November 21, 

2017 

http:5,000.00
http:3,000.00
http:40,000.00


     
       

    
   

 

 

    

 

 

    

   

    

 

 

 

  
            
       

 
   
                 

 
 

   
    

 
     
                    

               
            

          
 

                  
 

    
                

                  
                

                
                   

             
                     

              
        

 
               

         
              

 
                

    
 

  
         

 

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 
116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting
 
Minutes
 

Tuesday, December 16, 2017, 6:30 p.m.
 
th

116 East 169 Street 

Bronx, New York 10463 

Trustees Present 
(Skype -Miguel Balbuena, Sandra Hayes, Michael Rosen) Gregoria Feliciano, Ivan Lee, Benjamin 
Yalow, Shirley Saunders, Alec Diacou Executive Director. 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 6:37 p.m. by Ben Yalow, the Chair for the evening. A quorum was 
present. 

Adoption of Agenda 
The agenda was adopted. 

Finance report (CSBM, Michael Rosen) 
Michael explained the status of our Revenue lines. It appears we will be all right with the revenue side. 
Our chess team received a $3,000 contribution from the Wallace Foundation, and parents have raised 
$1,400. We are behind in hiring approximately 7 teachers and social workers. Substitute teachers have 
been used. We still need 4 teachers and one trained Operations person. 

Approval of 990 – A motion was made and passed to accept the approval of the 990 Tax Form. 

Charter renewal process highlights 
Much discussion ensued concerning the status of our students. The Trustees feel according to the data 
we have been shown indicates that our students are not excelling, especially in literacy. It appears that 
our upper grades are failing and we need answers to help our children succeed. Much discussion 
ensured. Questions like where are they failing. Who is failing? Are they the newer students, or is it due 
to poor attendance, etc. We are a data driven school and should have the answers. Because the 
discussion became highly emotional it was mentioned that the request was made to the principal last 
August 2017 to provide us answers so that when the State comes to visit us again in 2018 we will have 
implemented corrective measures. Since the principal was not present at meeting the Trustees agreed 
to call her and submit the following: 

Resolved: The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees requests the principal to submit a 
STEP Literacy progress report for each student currently enrolled in Yalow including baseline STEP 
assessment annual progress, and current STEP level in spreadsheet format by January 9, 2018. 

Ben Yalow called the principal and reported the above resolution to her. Principal Belle acknowledged 
receipt of the resolution. 

Principal Report 
(See attached) Bullet points summary of 2 items, lacking data and/or description. 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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Absentee report 
Our absentee numbers are going down
 
An Attendance Clerk was hired on 12/18/2017.
 
Interviewing for a Dean of Students – one looks promising.
 

Executive Director report 
Alec is in discussion with Walker Memorial to enter into a 3-year lease from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 
2021, subject to the Board’s approval. 

We are still waiting for an approval from Mount Saint Michael Academy approving Yalow’s new 5-year 
lease. 

New Business
 

Public Comment
 

Adjournment
 
The meeting was adjourned at - 8:45 p.m.
 

Submitted by 

Shirley Saunders, secretary 

Approved by Board of 

Trustees on January 16, 2018 



     
       

    
   

 

 

    

 

 

    

   

    

 

 

 

  
             

             
                

             
          

 
 

   
                 

 
   

    
 

       
                

 
 

  
                 

      
 

     
             

               
              

             
                

        
 

  
              

             
 

    
                

              
  

 
   

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 
116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting
 
Minutes
 

Tuesday, January 16, 2018, 6:30 p.m.
 
th

116 East 169 Street 

Bronx, New York 10463 

Trustees Present 
(Skype – William Jackson, Michael Rosen), Ivan Lee, Benjamin Yalow, Gregoria Feliciano, Miguel 
Balbuena, Shirley Saunders, Sandra Hayes, John Carr, Letta Belle - Principal, Yvonne Booker-Byers, 
Alec Diacou – Executive Director, Guests: Tyler T. Hendry and Richard G. Kass (Bond Schoeneck & 
King). Power Point Presentation – Nicole Temple (Co-Director of STEP, Partnerships and Growth), 
and Laura Walsh Giesecke (Senior Manager of Technology and Development, STEP Literacy) 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 6:35 p.m. by Chairman John Carr. A quorum was present. 

Adoption of Agenda 
The agenda was adopted. 

Acceptance of the Minutes of December 19, 2017 
Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for the meeting held on December 19, 2017 were 
unanimously approved. 

Executive Session 
The teacher’s letter of January 11, 2018 announcing their intent to form a union with the United 
Federation of Teachers was discussed. 

Education Committee – Miguel Balbuena 
Nicole and Laura gave a very extensive presentation using the University of Chicago Impact 
(UChicagoImpact) tools. Our children were evaluated from Kindergarten to 3rd grade. We were given 
student performance by grade, growth by the year, growth by Assessment Cycle and Component 
Breakdown by grade and years. We will be working on getting our students the necessary books they 
need to improve and bring up their scores. We will be exploring other avenues and paths to success as 
quickly as possible in order for the students to improve. 

Principal Report 
Our absentee numbers are going down. Dean of Students hired. Dean of Instruction selected pending 
reference check. Mr. Carr recommended the principal compile a classroom book order up to $50,000. 

Finance report (John Carr) 
Net income is forecast to be $832k, $672K greater than forecast, primarily due to hiring delays resulting 
in lower payroll and benefits. Year-end cash balances forecast to be $1.96 million after making required 
lease deposits. 

Executive Director report 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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Waiting on Walker Memorial to return the 3-year lease extension for 116 E. 169th St. 5-year lease with 
Mount Saint Michael Academy was approved in Rome; now waiting on NYSED approval. 

The January 15 Charter School Center conference on teacher retention reconfirmed that there is an 
acute teacher shortage. Yalow’s hiring process needs to be streamlined. In today’s more competitive 
market, Yalow’s hiring process can’t take more than 10 days from phone screening a teacher candidate 
to demo lesson to signed offer letter, or we will lose out to other schools hiring good teacher candidates. 
We will engage two new recruiters. The goal: hiring 9 teachers for FY18-19 by March 2018. 

Following the chess team’s 4th place finish (Under-600) in the Greater NY Scholastic Chess 
Championships on January 7, we are soliciting donations to send 25 members of the chess team the NYS 
Scholastic Chess Championships in Saratoga, NY, March 9-11, 2018. $15,000 is needed; $4,400 raised to 
date. 

Following the progress report on architectural and engineering plans for the second campus at St. 
Paul’s Hall, the following resolution was introduced and unanimously approved. 

Resolved, the November 21, 2017 resolution is hereby amended such that the Executive Director of the 
School is authorized and directed to incur such additional costs as are necessary to have plans prepared 
for the performance of Landlord’s Work pending NYSED approval of the Lease, such costs estimated to 
be approximately $20,000. 

New Business 

Public Comment 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:55 p.m. 

Submitted by 

Shirley Saunders, Secretary 

Approved by Board of 

Trustees on February 20, 2018 



     

       
    

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting
 
Minutes
 

Tuesday, February 20th, 2018, 6:30 p.m.
 
116th East 169th Street
 

Bronx, New York 10463
 

Trustees Present 

John W. Carr, Ivan Lee, Sandra Hayes, Shirley Saunders, Benjamin Yalow, and via Skype, 
Miguel Balbuena and Michael Rosen.  Alec Diacou, Executive Director, and Collin Raymond of 
CSBM were also in attendance. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:45 pm by Chairman John W. Carr.  A quorum was present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Upon a motion duly made, and seconded, the agenda was unanimously approved. 

Approval of Minutes 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the meeting held on January 16, 2018, 
with certain changes requested by members of the board, were unanimously approved. 

NLRB Certification of Unionization Election 

The Executive Director reported that the vote on unionization of the teaching staff had been held 
with the result of a majority of those voting having voted against unionization.  

The Chairman reported that one lesson of the effort to unionize the teaching staff was that the 
board and individual trustees needed to substantially increase their presence in the school and 
particularly in the classroom, and that increased opportunities for interaction with the staff need 
be provided.  To that end Mr. Carr encouraged (1) each trustee to make a point of visiting the 
school and attending classes at least once or twice each year,  (2) the Principal and Executive 
Director arrange for an informal social gathering where trustees could meet with the teachers and 
the school leadership team, and (3) the Principal and Executive Director plan for up to two 
formal social gathers at the school or elsewhere ideally early in the late summer or early fall of 
the academic year and again late in the spring of the year.  

Finance Report 

Michael Rosen and Collin Raymond of CSBM reviewed the monthly finance report for the 
seven-month period ending on January 31, 2018 distributed to the board. 

Facilities 

The Chairman described the decision of the New York State Education Department Charter 
School Office to not approve the Yalow request to open a second facility at Mount St. Michael 
Academy.  He described the factors that the Charter School Office took into account and directed 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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the board to NYSED’s letter rejecting Yalow’s request.  Mr. Carr also reported that the Charter 
School Office proposed that Yalow submit another proposal by the end of February.  The 
Executive Director then reported on alternative plans to lease space at 3480 Third Avenue that 
was occupied by an existing charter school.  Mr. Diacou reviewed with the board the features of 
the space, which had originally been considered at the time the St. Michaels school space was 
reviewed by the board.  Mr.  Diacou also reviewed the status of the extension of the lease at 116 
E. 169th Street that had been approved and agreed to by Walker Memorial Baptist Church and 
Yalow on terms reviewed and approved by the board at a prior meeting.  

On a motion duly made and seconded, the board unanimously approved the resolution attached 
as Exhibit A regarding the entering into a lease at 3480 Third Avenue and the submission of a 
request to the NYSED for approval of expansion into such location.    

Teacher Compensation and related Matters 

Mr. Diacou reported on the need to begin recruiting teachers for the 2018 – 2019 academic year 
and that the School needed to be earlier and more aggressive in hiring quality teachers.  In 
connection to this he recommended that the base salary for classroom teaching staff be raised by 
$7,500 across the board.  After review of the financial implications of such an action in the 
coming year and extensive discussion, the board of trustees approved such change and upon a 
motion duly made and seconded unanimously approved the following resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT, the base salary and formula used to determine the salary of 
the teaching staff shall be increased by $7,500 per year effective in the 2018 – 2019 fiscal 
year, and that the Executive Director of the School is authorized and directed to take such 
further acts and make such required submissions and filings related thereto and execute 
such documents and agreements as are reasonably necessary to implement this resolution. 

The Chairman also recommended that the board amend its paid time off policy to increase the 
number of days allowed under the policy from 5 to 10 annually which he reported was more 
competitive with similar policies at other charter schools.  Upon a motion duly made and 
seconded the board unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT, the Paid Time Off policy set forth in the School Employee 
Handbook is hereby amended to provide 10 days off with pay rather than 5 days off as 
currently set forth in the policy, and that the Executive Director of the School is 
authorized and directed to revise such policy and distribute it to the staff of the School 
and to take such further acts and make such required submissions and filings related 
thereto and execute such documents and agreements as are reasonably necessary to 
implement this resolution. 

In addition, the Chairman proposed that he would appoint a new Teacher’s Advisory Committee 
on Facilities to review and advise the Executive Director and Principal on matters related to the 
school’s current building and any second facility ultimately approved and occupied.  Mr. Carr 
noted that he would look to the Principal for recommendations of the teachers to appoint to such 
committee. 

Absentee Report 

The Executive Director noted for the board’s review the absentee report distributed to the 
trustees without discussion. 
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Principal Report 

The Principal, having been excused from attendance at the meeting, was not able to deliver a 
report in person, and the Chairman agreed, as requested by members of the board, that he would 
request that the principal make available a written report on academic performance of the school 
at least monthly in advance of board meetings whenever she would be unable to attend in person. 

Social Worker Teacher Strategy and Action Plan 

The Chairman reminded the board of prior discussions regarding the need to better articulate and 
develop the School’s strategy and plan of action for the use of social worker teachers in the 
classroom. Upon a motion duly made and seconded the board unanimously approved the 
following resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT, the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School is hereby authorized 
and directed to undertake, and expend up to $50,000 for outside consultants and advisors 
for use in, the preparation of a social worker teacher strategy and action plan, in 
consultation with the executive director and principal, and such additional expenditures 
related thereto in the reasonable judgement of the Chairman, and the Chairman 
authorized to direct, manage and undertake such activity and retain such outside 
consultants and advisors as he should determine in his reasonable judgement, and to take 
such further acts and make such required submissions and filings related thereto and 
execute such documents and agreements as are reasonably necessary to implement this 
resolution. 

Chess Tournament 

The Executive Director reported on the School’s planned attendance at the NY State Scholastic 
Chess Championships in Saratoga, NY on March 10 and 11, and the importance of supporting 
the highly competitive chess team of the School. He informed the board that participation in the 
tournament was being supported by donations and parent fundraising, but additional funding was 
required for full participation.  Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the board unanimously 
approved the expenditure of $9,000, in addition to amounts received from outside sources, for 
costs related to attendance and competition in the chess tournament. 

New Business 

There was no new business 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:15 pm. 

Submitted by John W. Carr, Chairman, 
on behalf of Shirley Saunders, Secretary 
Approved by the Board of Trustees on 
March 20, 2018 
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Exhibit A
 

WHEREAS, the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School is in the process of requesting a charter revision to 
open a second location to accommodate growth as provided for in its charter from the New York 
State Education Department while continuing to operate at its existing facility at 116 E. 169th Street, 
Bronx, NY. and 

WHEREAS, the proposed second facility is located at 3480 Third Avenue, Bronx, NY and 
currently is leased to an existing charter school, and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has advised the Board that the principal terms of the proposed 
lease for 3480 Third Avenue will be as follows: (1) three-year gross lease; (2) delivery of possession 
not later than July 1, 2018; (4) approximate annual rental of $682,000 in the first year, $702,460 in 
the second year, and $723,574 in the third year; (5) security deposit of $159,000; (6) tenant to pay all 
utilities; (7) tenant to maintain the premises, structural and non-structural; (8) tenant to subordinate 
to Landlord mortgage provided mortgagee gives non-disturbance agreement and (9) lease subject to 
Board approval, and approval of New York State Education Department. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT, the Executive Director of the 
School is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an agreement to lease the premises at 3480 
Third Avenue, Bronx, New York upon the terms proposed to the Board by the Executive Director 
and pursuant to the terms of the lease agreement presented to the Board at this meeting, and it is 
hereby, with such change in the terms that such Executive Director may reasonably agree to after 
conferring with the Chairman, and 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Executive Director of the School is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a revised application with the New York State Education Department seeking an 
amendment of its charter to permit the extension of its lease at its current school location and to 
authorize the expansion of the School onto a second campus located at 3480 Third Avenue on the 
terms discussed with the  Board at this meeting, and 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Executive Director of the School is hereby authorized and 
directed to take such further acts and execute such agreements as are reasonably necessary to 
implement the foregoing. 

Resolved: The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees amends the board 
resolution passed on November 21, 2017, listed as Attachment A to the Proposed 
Charter Revision for Rosalyn Yalow Charter School, authorizing and directing the 
executive director to file a revised application with the New York State Education 
Department seeking an amendment of its charter to permit the extension of its lease at 
its current school location in the Church Building and to authorize the expansion of the 
School onto a second campus at 3490 Third Avenue pursuant to the lease presented to 
the Board at this meeting, and negotiate the changes to the Third Avenue lease as 
stipulated by the board of trustees. 



     

       
    

   

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

  

  
 

 
 

 

 

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting
 
Minutes
 

Tuesday, April 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m.
 
116th East 169th Street 


Bronx, New York 10463
 

Trustees Present 

John Carr, Sandra Hayes, Ben Yalow, Ivan Lee, Miguel Balbuena, Gregoria Feliciano and 
Shirley Saunders. Michael Rosen participated by telephone. Alec Diacou, executive director, 
Letta Belle, principal, Yvonne Booker-Byers, director of assessment, Shannon Burton, dean of 
instruction, Donald Mabrey, dean of students, and Collin Raymond, CSBM were also in 
attendance. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:39 p.m. 

2. Executive Session 

The board agreed to engage BoardOnTrack for further board development, and the April 21, 
2018 board retreat is rescheduled to May 5, 2018 from 10:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.  

Governance Resolution 

The Governance Resolution was discussed at length and agreed upon unanimously. 

RESOLVED THAT, except as may otherwise be authorized by resolution of the board 
or expressly delegated to committees of the board, the Executive Director and the 
Principal shall report to and communicate with the Board at meetings and between 
meetings through the Chairman who shall act on behalf of the Board consistent with the 
School's charter, applicable law and delegations and authorizations of the Board of 
Trustees; provided that this shall in no way restrict the legal authority of individual 
trustees, Board committees or their chairs or designees to seek or obtain information 
about the activities of the School in the performance of their duties. 

Preparation of Draft Minutes Resolution 

The Preparation of Draft Minutes Resolution was discussed and agreed upon unanimously. 

RESOLVED THAT, the Chairman is authorized to appoint a new or existing staff 
member (who may be an employee of the School) to undertake the duty of taking notes 
and preparing draft minutes at each meeting of the Board of Trustees for the Secretary or 
any Assistant Secretary (which office such person may be appointed to hold) at a cost not 
to exceed $3,000 per year. 

3. Adoption of Agenda 

The adoption of the agenda was duly motioned and passed. 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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4. Chairman Report 

5. Finance Report (Collin Raymond, CSBM, Michael Rosen) 

9-month net income is $996k, and FY17-18 year is forecast to end with net income of $983k. A 
detailed discussion on IEP’s and special education services ensued, including the ratio of 
teachers to students and IEP service reimbursements.  We have 68 students receiving special 
education services.  

We have begun staffing our operations to open the second campus on Third Avenue.  We plan to 
hire 15-20 new teachers for the FY 18-19 and calculate on losing 8 teachers.   

6. Facility Expansion (Resolution) 

With respect to Yalow’s charter revision request, NYSED is waiting for Yalow’s board to 
finalize the opening and closing times of the two (2) campus locations 3480 Third Ave., Bronx, 
NY and 116 E. 169th St., Bronx, NY.  Upon a motion duly made and seconded the board 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT, the opening and closing times for each campus will be as follow: 

169th Street Third Avenue 

Opening times: 8:00 a.m. 7:30 a.m. 

Closing times: 5:00 p.m. 4:30 p.m. 

This resolution was duly made, seconded and unanimously passed by the Board of Trustees. 

7. Review of Facility Leases 

Discussions ensued about our current location. Our attorney has prepared a First Amendment to 
Lease between Walker Memorial Baptist Church and Rosalyn Yalow Charter School (attached), 
addressing the roof and other responsibilities the Church has to Yalow school.  Upon a motion 
duly made and seconded the board unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT, the First Amendment to Lease between Walker Memorial Baptist 
Church and Rosalyn Yalow Charter is approved. 

It was also suggested that a Negotiating Committee be formed. 

8. Principal Report 

Our new dean of students, Mr. Don Mabrey, gave an overview of our student attendance and 
absentee report summaries as of April 13, 2018.  See handouts submitted.  A vigorous discussion 
ensued.   

Principal Belle informed the board that the NYS Math test will be administered to Yalow’s 3rd-
grade students May 1-2, 2018.  Naomi Ishida, Yalow’s Singapore math instructional specialist, 
gave an extensive overview of the status of the math program. 

Principal Belle addressed Yalow’s compliance with teacher certification requirements, and is 
urging uncertified teachers to submit their pathway for NYS certification to her by May.  Ms. 
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Belle projects that 15 to 20 teachers will need to be hired for FY18-19, and looks forward to 
utilizing Yalow’s two campus locations beginning in September.  

Yvonne Booker-Byers and Mr. M. Balbuena will attend a seminar at the Charter Center 
regarding student data collection on April 25, 2018. Mr. Carr suggested we form a pilot system 
of collecting student data for board review, which is more comprehensive than what we currently 
use. 

9. Executive Director Report 

The FY18-19 student lottery was held April 11. We accepted 120 kindergarten, 11 1st-grade, and 
11 2nd-grade students. Over 400 applicants remain on our wait list (323 Kindergarten, 50 1st 
grade, 38 2nd grade).  The Executive Director said that the Bronx Borough President, Ruben 
Diaz, Jr. will come to Yalow on Monday April 30, 2018 to give Yalow’s chess team certificates 
for winning the 2018 NYS Scholastic Chess Championships. A performance based teacher bonus 
plan was discussed. 

10. New Business – None 

11. Public Comment – None 

12. Adjournment – 9:37 p.m. 

Submitted by Shirley Saunders, Secretary 
Approved by the Board of Trustees on 
May 15, 2018 



	

	 	

	

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

 

    
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

 

   
 

   
 

  
 

   
 

  
    

   
 

  
 

 

Minutes
 

ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL
 
BOARD RETREAT
 

NEW YORK BOTANICAL GARDENS
 
2900 Southern Boulevard
 

Bronx, New York
 
Saturday, May 5, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.
 

Trustees Present 

Benjamin Yalow, Dr. Sandra Hayes, Michael Rosen, Shirley Saunders and Alec Diacou, 
Executive Director. 

We did not have a quorum of Trustees, therefore this meeting was informal and limited to 
discussion only. 

•	 990 – this IRS document had not been signed.  Mr. Rosen agreed to sign it as the 
Board Treasurer. 

•	 John Carr gave the Board notice that he resigned as board chairman and we must 
make NYSED Charter School Office (Ms. Nicole Henderson) aware of his 
resignation.  We discussed this issue at length.  No recommendation was agreed upon. 

•	 The April 17th, 2018 minutes need to be approved at our next Board meeting. 

•	 It was previously agreed that the Board of Trustees needed to hire a person who can 
take minutes at our meetings.  We will be moving forward with that. 

•	 Charter – we need to review our charter periodically just to be sure there is clarity with 
the staff, parents and the trustees.  We need to set our calendars whereas when 
trustees need to be re-appointed, various yearly exams the students take (assessments). 

•	 We also need an events calendar to be issued with our agenda. 

•	 Managing and measuring student performance – Principal Belle should be in 
attendance once a month at our Trustees meeting or her proxy to advise us on the 
progress of our students.  If the Principal is unable to attend our monthly meetings, 
then it is fair for us to know by name who we should expect on her behalf and present 
the status of our students. 

•	 Discussed questions about student performance, which will be sent to principal Belle 
with a request to submit answers by Friday, May 12. 

1 |	P a g e 
  



	

	 	

	

 

  
 

 

   
 
 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

     
   

 

     
 

   
   

 
      

 

   
 

 

   
 

 
 
 
 

  
   

  

•	 2018-19 Budget – Several key issues concerning the budget were discussed by Michael, 
Ben, and Alec, and the budget will be submitted to the full board for a vote. T 

•	 The lease with Walker Memorial was discussed in great detail.  We thought we had a 
lease, but they came back to us with a re-negotiated lease making us responsible for 
anything and everything that will occur in our building.  We are having our attorneys 
investigate our options concerning a re-negotiated lease. We will also contact Ms. 
Soto, Esq. an attorney recommended to us. 

•	 Our attorney, Bernie Kennedy, was conferenced in on speakerphone to discuss 
Yalow’s lease problems. He suggested we get engineering estimates for the cost of 
replacing the four rooftop HVAC units, and Alec was asked get estimates. 

•	 Brainstorming - We asked ourselves questions like “charter design items” – do we 
want to make change in the charter’s model? Examples, changing teacher-social 
worker model to 2 teachers per class?  Saturday Academy time on tasks.  Should M-F 
learning time be reduced to 6 hours?  Classroom management and success for teachers 
and students.  Every Oct. 5 we must submit our measure of progress and send it to 
the state. 

•	 Recommended a payout to teachers for PTO time of $200.00 per day. 

•	 Discussed the “health” of our school –  The challenge of teachers vs. social workers. 
How is our staff doing? (evaluations). Appropriate umbers of students and teachers 
per classroom: 2 teachers, 30 students per class. Can we work with one social worker 
per class?  Our 401k match plan is okay. 

•	 Reviewed health benefits from Aetna, Blue Cross/Blue Sheild, and Oxford/United. 
Oxford was recommended, with Yalow subsidizing 92% of Basic plan. 

•	 The meeting ended approximately 5:00 p.m. 

Submitted by 
Shirley J. Saunders, Secretary 
Approved by participating Trustees 
May 15, 2018 
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THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 
116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting
 
Minutes
 

Tuesday, May 15, 2018, 6:30 p.m.
 
116 E. 169th Street
 

Bronx, New York 10463
 

Trustees Present 

Miguel Balbuena, Iva Lee, John W. Carr, Sandra Hayes, Shirley Saunders, Gregoria Feliciano. 

Via Skype:  Michael Rosen 

Staff:  Letta Belle Principal, Yvonne Booker-Byers, Naomi Ishida, Allison Reynolds, Shannon 
Burton, Don Mabrey,  Collin Raymond 

Via Phone:  Donna Friedman, Executive Director, Mosaic Mental Health 

Guests: Bernard Kennedy, Esq. of Bond, Schoeneck, & King, LLP, and Marissa Soto, Esq. of Soto 
& Associates. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was chaired by Sandra Hayes, and called to order at 6:40 p.m.  A quorum was present. 

Executive Session 

Discussion ensued on potential litigation and Board governance. With the hiring of BoardOnTrack 
on May 7, 2018, we now have a stronger governance platform in place. 

In order to enter into a 3-year lease renewal, Walker Memorial is insisting on a triple-net lease. We 
will have our attorneys explore renegotiating a lease renewal that allows Yalow to continue putting 
money into student services rather than building renovations. Our target completion date is June 1, 
2018. 

Although Mr. Carr has resigned as Chairman of the Trustees Board, he will remain a Trustee.  We 
will advise Ms. Nicole Henderson at NYSED. 

The Board discussed reorganizing the Board to include a Chairman and a Co-Chairman of the Board 
of Trustees for a 6-month trial period. A motion was duly made amending the By-Laws to create a 
Co-Chairman and election of Chairman and Co-Chairman (Attachment A). 

A motion was duly made to elect Mr. Michael Balbuena as Chairman of the Board of Trustees and 
Mr. Ivan Lee as Co-Chairman. This motion passed with a vote of 7 to 0. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Upon a motion duly made, and seconded, the agenda was unanimously approved. 

Approval of Minutes 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the meeting held on April 17, 2018, as 
amended, were unanimously approved. 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the board retreat held on May 5, 2018 were 
unanimously approved by the board members present at the retreat. 

Finance Report 

Michael Rosen and Collin Raymond of CSBM reviewed the monthly finance report for the 10-
month period ending on April 30, 2018, distributed to the board. Finances are in a little better shape 
due to lower expenses, particularly salaries and taxes, giving us a greater surplus. 

Fiscal 2018-19 Budget 

The board received the 2-year budget covering the July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2020 period prepared by 
the executive director and reviewed by the finance committee during the May 5 Board retreat with a 
recommendation for submission to the full board. Following a lengthy discussion, upon a motion 
duly made and seconded, the budget was unanimously approved. 

Employee Medical Benefits for FY2018-19 

Quotes from three small employer plans (Oxford/United Health Care, Aetna, and Blue Cross/Blue 
Shield) were considered for FY18-19. Oxford had the lowest cost for the equivalent services Yalow 
is offering employees in FY17-18. Yalow’s finance committee recommended increasing the subsidy 
Yalow currently offers for Oxford’s basic plan from 90% in FY17-18, to 92% for FY18-19—a net 
increase in cost of 2.8% to Yalow. 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors approved the following 
resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the executive director to
 
offer employees the Oxford Metro Gold Gated health plan (specialist referrals required)
 
and subsidize $659.73 of the individual premium. Metro Gold Non-Gated (specialist
 
referrals not required) and Freedom Gold plans shall be offered to employees as “buy-
up” health plans options.
 

FY17-18 School Calendar 

Following review of the proposed school calendar, upon motions duly made and seconded, the 
school’s board of directors unanimously approved the following resolutions. 

Resolved: That the Board of Directors sets the number of official school days at 193 
days, commencing September 4, 2018 and ending June 28, 2019, which includes two 
additional days to cover emergency school closures. 

Paid Time Off (PTO) Buy-back Policy 

Pursuant to a proposal made by the principal, Yalow’s finance committee recommended 
compensating employees for each unused PTO day. Principal Belle noted that employees perceive 
PTO days as entitlements and a PTO buy-back program may reduce employee absenteeism. 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors approved the following 
resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves compensating employees $200 for each 
unused Paid Time Off day outlined in the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Employee 
Handbook. 
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Authorization to sign Third Avenue Facility Lease 

Following a review of the revised annual rent for 3480 Third Avenue, upon a motion duly made and 
seconded, the school’s board of directors unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Board of Directors authorizes Alec Diacou to sign the three-year 
lease with the landlord for 3490 Third Avenue, 3480 Third Avenue Realty LLC, for the 
lease commencing July 1, 2018. 

Authorization to Switch Worker’s Compensation Policy 

The NYS Insurance Fund is adding a 32% surcharge to Yalow’s premium due to “experience claims” 
(Nash and Morris). Our insurance broker, B&G Group, has secured a workers comp proposal from 
Utica National providing for significant savings. 

Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors 
approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees authorizes the executive director to drop the NYS 
Insurance Fund as carrier for Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s Worker’s 
Compensation Policy effective May 18, 2018, and enter a new policy with Utica Mutual 
Insurance Co. 

Principal Report 

See attached report. Lengthy discussion of student progress ensued. Teacher recruitment 
for FY18-19 continues. Remaining hires needed: 5 teacher-social workers, 4 lead 
teachers/teaching fellows, and 4 response to intervention team teachers (special ed, ELL, 
and other). 

Absentee Report 
The absentee report was distributed to the trustees without discussion. 

New Business 

Sandra Hayes suggested that the Board consult BoardOnTrack about structuring an anonymous 
teacher survey. The goal: improved communication between the teachers and administration. 

John Carr reviewed the objectives of the social worker-teacher strategy and action plan approved at 
the February 2018 board meeting and subsequent engagement of Mosaic Mental Health to prepare a 
working outline for effective utitlization of teacher-social workers in classrooms. Principal Belle was 
directed to meet with Dr. Donna Friedman and finalize the report. 

In order to entice additional social workers to join Yalow’s teacher-social worker model, John Carr 
raised the issue of adjusting Yalow’s salary scale to compensate social workers for holding an LMSW, 
equivalent with teacher compensation for holding a master’s degree in education. Following 
discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors approved the 
following resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees authorizes the executive director to provide 
equivalent compensation to teachers holding a masters degree in either social work 
or education. 

Public Comment 

None. 
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Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:38 p.m. 

Submitted by 
Shirley Saunders, Secretary 
Approved by Board of 
Trustees on June 4, 2018 



          

     

 

          

       

 

   

          

       

         

 

        

 

    

   

       

    

       

   

        

    

    

   

Attachment A, Executive Session, May 15, 2018 Board Minutes
	

[Resolutions amending By-Laws to create Co-Chair and election of Chairman and Co-Chair] 

Resolved that the By-laws of the Rosalyn Yalow Charter Schools are hereby amended to add to 

Section 6.1 the following new subparagraph 

(b) Co-Chair: The Co-Chair shall have all powers of the Chair except as are expressly not 

delegated to the Co-chair by the Chair and shall have such other powers as the Board 

may prescribe. 

The current subsection (b) of section 6.1 shall be amended to read as follows 

(c) Vice Chair: The Vice-Chair shall act in the place of the Chair and Co-Chair if both are 

absent or unable to fulfill their duties and when so acting will have all the Chair’s powers 

and be subject to the same restrictions. The Vice-Chair shall have such other powers as 

the Board may prescribe. 

The other existing subsections (c) through (g) of Section 6.1 shall be re-lettered in sequence as 

subsections (d) through (h). 

Resolved that the officers of the Rosalyn Yalow School are directed to file this resolution setting 

forth the amendment to the By-laws of the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School with the New York 

State Education Department (the “NYSED”) and such other appropriate offices or persons, for 

such and any review that may be required of them. 

Resolved that Miguel Balbuena is hereby elected to the office of Chair effective immediately or, if 

so required, upon approval of the NYSED. 

Resolved that Ivan Lee is herby elected to the office of Co-Chair effective immediately or if 

required, upon the approval of the NYSED, including to the extent of the review and approval of 

the amendment of the By-Laws provided for in these resolutions. 

Adopted by Unanimous Vote of the Board of Trustees on May 15, 2018 



     

       
    

   

    
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

 

 

  

   

 

  
   

  

  
 

 

 

 
   

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees
 
Minutes
 

Monday, June 4, 2018, 6:30 p.m.
 
116 E. 169th Street
 

Bronx, New York 10463
 

Trustees Present 

Ben Yalow.
 

Via Skype:  Michael Rosen, Miguel Balbuena, Ivan Lee, John W. Carr.
 

Via Phone:  Gregoria Feliciano, Shirley Saunders.
 

Staff: Alec Diacou.
 

Call to Order 

The meeting was chaired by Miguel Balbuena, and called to order at 6:35 p.m.  A quorum was 
present. 

Approval of Minutes 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the meeting held on May 15, 2018, as 
amended, were unanimously approved. 

Lease Extension With Walker Memorial Baptist Church 

Following discussion of lease revisions, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board 
of directors approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves the First Amendment to Lease between
 
Walker Memorial Baptist Church (lessor), and Rosalyn Yalow Charter School (lessee),
 
dated April 30, 2015, amending the expiration date of the Lease Term to 5:00 p.m., June
 
20, 2021 at a Fixed Rent of $1,260,000 per annum, commencing July 1, 2018.
 

Authorization to Execute First Amendment to Lease 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors unanimously approved the 
following resolutions. 

Resolved: That the Board of Trustees authorizes the Executive Director to sign the 

First Amendment to Lease between Walker Memorial Baptist Church and Rosalyn
 
Yalow Charter School.
 

Authorization to Make Security Deposits 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors approved the following 
resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees to make the security deposits stipulated under the
 
First Amendment to Lease between Walker Memorial Baptist Church and Rosalyn
 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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Yalow Charter School, and the Third Avenue Facility Lease between 3480 Third 

Avenue Realty LLC and Rosalyn Yalow Charter School.
 

Public Comment 

None. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 

Submitted by 

Shirley Saunders, Secretary 

Approved by Board of 

Trustees on June 19, 2018 



     
       

    
   

 

 

    

 

 

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	

		

	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	

		

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		

	 	 	

	 	 	

		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

		

	 	

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		      

     	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	  

           

           

          

   
  

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 
116 East 169th Street� Bronx, New York, 10452 
� Phone: 347.735.5480 �info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting
 
Minutes
 

Tuesday, June	19,	2018,	6:30 p.m.
 
116	East	169

th 
Street
 

Bronx, New York	 10463
 

Trustees	Present 
Miguel Balbuena—Chair, Ivan Lee, John W. Carr, Sandra	 Hayes, Shirley Saunders, Gregoria	 
Feliciano, Benjamin Yalow. 
Via	 Skype: Sandra	 Hayes – Vice Chair, Michael Rosen – Treasurer 
Staff: Alec Diacou – Executive Director,	 Yvonne 	Booker-Byers – director of assessment, Naomi 
Ishida, Don	 Mabrey – Dean of Students, Collin Raymond – CSBM. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:36 p.m. by Miguel Balbuena,	Chairman.	 A	 quorum was present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda	 was adopted. 

Acceptance of the Minutes of June 4, 2018 
Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for	 the meeting held	 on June 4, 2018 were 
unanimously approved,	as 	amended. 

Board	 Approval Items 

Authorization to Enter into Collaboration Agreement With Bank Street College of Education 

Included in the commissioned study being conducted by Mosaic Mental Health for utilization of 
teacher-social workers in K-2 classrooms was a	 recommendation for school-wide staff 
professional development by the 	Bank Street	 Center for Emotionally Responsive Practice (ERP), 
beginning in August	 and continuing through the FY18-19 school year. Mosaic feels that ERP is 

essential to reducing student emotional outbursts. The Bank Street	 collaboration is designed to 
provide all staff with a	 common understanding of childhood behavior and development, and 
provide a	 common language for informing Yalow’s student	 intervention practices and promote 

preventive practices to reduce stress for students and teachers.	 ERP is a year-long training program, 

including16 days of professional development and classroom observations, commencing with 3 days 

during Yalow’s Summer Teacher Workshop in August. Yalow chooses specific trainings. 

Following a discussion of the Bank Street proposal, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the 
school’s board of trustees approved the following resolution. 

http:www.yalowcharter.org
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org


 

 

  

 	 	 	  
 

 

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
 

 

   
 

  

  
 

  
 

         

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	  

  
 

 

 
 

Resolved: That the Board of Trustees approves entering into a collaboration with Bank Street 

College of Education Center for 	Emotionally Responsive Practice at an approximate cost of 
$50,000, commencing August 1, 2018. 

Revision to Section 6.1 (b) of By-Laws 

Conforming changes to the Rosalyn Yalow charter School By-Laws dated September 6, 2014, as 
discussed in Executive Session at the May 15, 2018 board meeting to add the position of Co-Chair 
to the list of officers, were presented for review. Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the 
school’s board of trustees approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves adding the position of Co-Chair to the list
 
of board officers in Section 6.1 (b) of the By-Laws and authorizes the executive director 

to submit a charter revision request to the NYSED pursuant to the Charter School 

Revision Guidelines dated November 2016.
 

Revision to Section 6.1 (g) of By-Laws 

Mr. Carr pointed out that the school By-Laws dated September 6, 2014 are out of compliance 
describing the roles of the executive director and the principal, and introduced a resolution to 
amend Section 6.1 (g). Following review of the proposed amendment, upon motions duly made and 
seconded, the school’s board of trustees unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Board of Trustees approves limiting the Executive Director’s
 
general supervision of the school delineated in Section 6.1(g) to those activities not
 
delegated to the principal in subsection 6.1(i) or otherwise by the board, as more fully
 
described in Attachment A.
 

Revisions to the Student and Family Handbook for the 2018-2019 School Year 

During the 2018-2019 School Year the Charter School will operate on two campuses with 
staggered opening and closing hours on Main Campus and the Third Avenue Campus to 
accommodate parents with siblings on both campuses, necessitating changes to the Student and 
Family Handbook.  Other differences in policies for the two campuses based on grade levels 
were also discussed. 

Following review of the proposed amendment, upon motions duly made and seconded, the school’s 
board of directors unanimously approved the following resolutions. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves amending the revisions previously
 
approved by the board on October 17, 2017 to the Student-Family Handbook, 

subject to NYSED’s final approval, to include the amendments contained in
 
Attachment B.
 

Engagement of Executive-Excellence as a Recruiter 

Mr. Diacou recommended the engagement of a new recruiter, Executive-Excellence for two 
positions at	 the new Third Avenue campus: Operations Manager and Dean of Students.	 

Following a discussion of the proposed costs relative to other recruitment contracts, upon motions 
duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors unanimously approved the following 
resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees authorizes the executive director to enter into the
 
proposed contract with Executive-Excellence for a fixed fee of $25,000.
 



 

 

  

  

 
 

 

 

  
  

  

  
 

 

	 

	

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 		

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 		

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 					

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 			

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

FY18-19 Board Meeting Calendar 

Following review of the proposed Board Meeting schedule, upon motions duly made and seconded, 
the school’s board of trustees unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Board of Trustees approves the attached FY18-19 Board 
meeting schedule providing for meetings on the third Tuesday of each month, at 
6:30 p.m., in the School’s main campus, located at 116 E. 169th St, Bronx, NY. 

FY17-18 Bonuses 

Following review and discussion of the proposed bonus schedule previously presented to the 
Finance Committee, a recommendation was made to postpone final determination of individual 
bonuses pending presentation and analysis of the academic progress of chess and fencing team 
students. It was agreed, however, that the expense should be fixed. Upon motions duly made and 
seconded, the school’s board of directors unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Upon motions duly made and seconded, the school’s board of trustees unanimously approved the 
following resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees authorizes staff bonuses, to be determined, in the 

amount of $30,000. 

Academics 
•	 Dean Mabrey stated he is preparing for the Kindergarten Moving-Up Ceremony. 

•	 Cut Scores – The Cut Scores are a	 state assessment with a	 grade	 of 3	 being performance at grade	 

level	and a	 grade	 4, performance above	 grade	 level. Dean Mabrey	 stated there is no	 data to	 

determine how many students are or are not meeting proficiency goals. It 	was 	suggested 	an 	internal	 

tool be created to capture	 this data. 

•	 17% of students	 are chronically	 absent. Dean Mabrey	 was	 asked to look	 into the patterns	 of these 

absentees. In 	addition, 	the 	Board is 	interested in knowing	 are the students with a high 

absentee rate meeting proficiency goals. 

•	 Students will remain using the current	 CKLA Curriculum. 

•	 Summer school classes	 will be held July 5-July 27,	3 	hours a 	day. 		Currently 	there are	 60	 students 

registered but	 are prepared to enroll 90 if	 necessary. 

•	 For those	 students enrolled in the	 Chess Program, the	 Board would like	 a	 report on their	 academic 

performance. 

•	 Teacher Hiring Process- Interviews 	are 	going 	well	for 	the 	hiring 	of 	new 	teachers. 	However, 	there is a	 

struggle in hiring Social Workers. 54% of teachers are	 certified and 46% are uncertified. 

•	 Ms. Booker-Byers recommended that	 since the Academic and Leadership teams work side by side, it 

would be beneficial if both participated in training. 

•	 2017-2018	 NYC Quality Guide	 Survey-This item has been tabled and will be discussed at	 the next	 

Board	 Meeting. 



 

 

	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 																		

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 	 	 	 	 	 		

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		

		

	 		

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		

		

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Operations of the School
 

•	 Finance Report (Collin Raymond) 

Currently there is a cash	 surplus due to	 unfilled	 positions. By the end	 of the fiscal year there 

will be roughly $1.8	 Million in 	the 	bank.	 However, that number is expected to decrease due to	 

unpaid	 bills such	 as legal expenses and	 consultant fees. 

•	 The preparation for	 the preliminary audit	 has begun. The process will be reviewed	 with	 the Board. 

•	 The distribution of the $30K	 towards bonuses will be	 distributed after June	 30th.	 It’s recommend the 

Board	 write a letter stating it’s intention	 on the distribution of	 the $30K so it	 can be included in the 

current fiscal year. The letter should be complete before or by the next scheduled Board Meeting. 

•	 Board	 Members interested in 	making a 	donation 	should do	 so	 as soon as possible	 so it too can be	 

included in 	the 	current 	fiscal	year. 

• Facility	 Lease Updates (Alec Diacou) 

•	 The Church has not yet entered into agreements with the contractors	 for the restoration of the 

roof	 and HVAC system, as	 required under the newly executed First Amendment to the Lease.	 

•	 Painting/renovations have begun at the	 Third Avenue	 campus. 

New Business 

It 	was 	recommended the materials presented for	 the academic reports be presented in a more 

organized	 manner. 

Submitted by 

Shirley Saunders, Secretary 

Approved	 by Board	 of Trustees on July xx,	2018 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:56 p.m. 
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FDJNBFDF@QQJCDJMFDOJEF@E@NJHFMFLFE@JGBGEHJGG 
GDFD@LFGEJHGDJEFEQJGGQEDJGGJED@ADEJGQEFD 
EGMMADFGOJMEMPED@JQFHJFDJGBGFMFL 
ADHED@GFDHFDJJGHJGQEJ@EQGGLR@JBDGJDFMQJCD 
<7:8R:=NJ`7]JGHJGQEJ@EQGGLa@J@GAHEDG@JMEDE
KDJLF@QJ?FDJAFJE
?EFDDED@Q 

VGJ@BEEFHFEFLLOJDEEDAFGJ@GAHEDG@JMFGQ 
HF@FPFLFGFE@NJWFLGMJ@GFHHJEGDHAEGEHJTFDEDG 
bGDS@QGB@JFGJcEFHJNGFDGJBDGJDFM@JFDJCNOJ; 
FDHJCNOJ8NJFDELAHFDJJ@EPEDFLJMFGQJQFJQ 
EGDEEDGDFGFGD@JGHJNBEEFFLJKHAEFGFGD 
@GAHEDG@QJOADFDJJFLLJGAGDEFEQJEHHGDG@NJWFLGM 
@GFHHJ@QFDEHJHEGFFL@JGHJGQEJ@EQGGLR@JBDGJDFM 
HGDJ@EDPFDJJ@GAHEDG@JMFGQJHF@FPFLFGFE@JFDH 
FDGEJDFGFDJJGQEMJHALLOJFDGGJGQEJ@EQGGLQJbE 
QFPEJFL@GJDEHGAPLEHJEHHGDG@JMFGQJGQEJCNKJGG 
DEPFEMJ@GAHEDGJDEHEDDFL@JHGDJCKT@JFDJGQEJGFME 
BEDFGHJDE^AFDEHJADHEDJHEHEDFLJLFMQJdHJGAD 
GGGFLJ@GAHEDGJBGBALFGFGDJFDJ<7:8R:=NJ:=]
MEDEJNGAHEDG@JMFGQJOF@FPFLFGFE@Q 

VGJEGDGFDAEJGADJ@GLFHJEHHGDG@JGGJDEEDAFG 
KEGDGMFEFLLOJOF@FHPFDGFJEHJ@GAHEDG@JFDJGQE 
<7:=R:;J@EQGGLJOEFDNJIG@FLODJWFLGMJCQFDGED 
NEQGGLJMFLLJHADGQEDJGFDJEGJFG@JMFFLFDJ@N 
FHPEDGF@FDJNJFDHJGAGDEFEQJGGJ@BEEFHFEJZFB 
EGHE@JFDHJEGMMADFGFE@JFDJGQEJXDGDYQJVQE 
@EQGGLJMFLLJFL@GJGHHEDJFGJLEF@GJ<\JFDHGDMFGFGD 
@E@@FGD@JGQDGAJQGAGJGQEJ@EQGGLJEGMMADFGOQ 
CDJFHHFGFGDNJGQEJ@EQGGLJMFLLJEGDGFDAEJBDGPFHFDJ 
GFDJEGEHJ@ABBGDGJHGDJHFMFLFE@JFDJEGMBLEGFDJ 
FDHJDEGADDFDJJGQEJLADEQJHGDM@Q 

[LGQGAJQJMEJHGJDGGJFDGFEFBFGEJMFSFDJJFDO
@AP@GFDGFFLJEQFDJE@JGGJGADJEHHGDG@JGGJDEEDAFG 
KDJLF@QJ?FDJAFJEJ?EFDDED@NJMEJMFLLJEGDGFDAE 
GGJEDEGADFJEJGADJEADDEDGJDGDRKDJLF@QJHFMFLFE@ 
GGJ@QFDEJFDHGDMFGFGDJFPGAGJGQEJ@EQGGLJFDH 
GQEJMODFFHJGHJ@EDPFEE@JMEJBDGPFHEJHGDJK?? 
@GAHEDG@JFDHJGQEFDJHFMFLFE@Q 

dADJEHHGDG@JGGJDEEDAFGJNGAHEDG@JMFGQ 
OF@FPFLFGFE@JFDJ<7:=R:;JMFLLJPEJ@FMFLFDJGGJGAD 
EHHGDG@JGQF@JBF@GJOEFDQJeGMJGQFGJMEJEFD 
HEMGD@GDFGEJ@AEEE@@JFDJMGDSFDJJMFGQ 
NGAHEDG@JMFGQJOF@FPFLFGFE@NJMEJMFLLJFHHJGQF@ 
FDHGDMFGFGDJGGJGADJBDFDGEHJMFGEDFFL@NJMEP@FGEN 
FDHJBDE@EDGFGFGD@Q 

SPGPFGTMFJEUUMHG[JeMjQHRJkPPGTFhJeQHhPG[
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OE@EDFPEJIEGEDGFGDJKHHGDG@JFDJ<7:8R:= OE@EDFPEJIEGEDGFGDJTLFD@JFDJ<7:=R:;U 

KEGDGM 
FEFLLO 
OF@FHPF 
DGFJEH 

KDJLF@Q 
?FDJAF 
JE 
?EFDDED 
@ 

IWCNJ@GDFPE@JGGJDEGFFDJKEGDGMFEFLLO 
OF@FHPFDGFJEHJ@GAHEDG@JPOJMFFDGFFDFDJJFD 
FDELA@FPEJEDPFDGDMEDGJFDJMQFEQJFLLJ@GAHEDG@ 
FDEJHALLOJFPLEJGGJBFDGFEFBFGEJFDJ@EQGGL 
BDGJDFM@JFDHJEYGDFEADDFEALFD@JDEJFDHLE@@JGH 
GQEFDJHFMFLOa@JFPFLFGOJGGJBFOQJfDFHGDM@JFDH 
@ABBLFE@JFDEJBDGPFHEHJHGDJFLLJHFMFLFE@JMQG 
EFDDGGJFHHGDHJGQEJEYBED@ENJFDHJDGJ@GAHEDG@ 
FDEJEQFDJEHJHGDJFEGFPFGFE@NJHFELHJGDFB@JFDH 
@BEEFFLJBDGJDFM@Q 

VGJDEGFFDJK??J@GAHEDG@NJWFLGMJDAD@JFJHALL 
FDELA@FGDJBDGJDFMJMFGQJK??@JDEEEFPFDJ 
LFDJAFJEJFE^AF@FGFGDJ@EDPFEE@JMFGQFDJGQE 
JEDEDFLJEHAEFGFGDJELF@@DGGMQJVQEJ@EQGGL 
A@E@JGQEJCGDEJgDGMLEHJEJ?FDJAFJEJ[DG@
BDGJDFMJHGDJJDFHE@Jgh`NJMQFEQJFDGEJDFGE@
BQGDFE@JMFGQJ@GGDOJGFMEJFDHJ@MFLLhJDGAB 
GAGGDFDJJGGJEDEFGEJFJPFLFDEEHJLFGEDFEO 
BDGJDFMQJbEJFL@GJA@EJGQEJNVKTJ?FGEDFEO 
BDGJDFMJGGJFHFBGJGADJBQGDFE@JFDHJLFGEDFEO 
FD@GDAEGFGDJGGJMEEGJGQEJDEEH@JGHJFDHFPFHAFL 
K??J@GAHEDG@JGQDGAJQJ@MFLLhJDGABJGAGGDFDJQ 
VQEJ@EQGGLJEMBLGO@JGMGJK??JFD@GDAEGGD@JMQG 
BA@QJFDGGJELF@@DGGM@JHADFDJJ@MFLLJJDGAB 
@E@@FGD@JGGJMGDSJMFGQJK??@JGDJFDJFDHFPFHAFL 
GDJJDGABJPF@F@JHEBEDHFDJJGDJEFEQJ@GAHEDGR@ 
DEEH@QJ 

CDJFHHFGFGDNJMEJBDGPFHEJDAMEDGA@ 
GBBGDGADFGFE@JHGDJGADJK??J@GAHEDG@JGG 
BFDGFEFBFGEJFDHJ@AEEEEHJFDJ@BEEFFLJBDGJDFM@ 
@AEQJF@JEQE@@JFDHJHEDEFDJQJVQF@JBF@GJOEFDN 
<\]JGHJGQEJ@GAHEDG@JGDJGADJEQFMBFGDJEQE@@
GEFMJMEDEJKDJLF@QJ?FDJAFJEJ?EFDDED@QJ 

WFLGMJHGLLGM@JFLLJFBBLFEFPLEJLFM@JFDJ@EDPFDJJFG@ 
K??J@GAHEDG@NJFDELAHFDJJ@GAHEDG 
FHEDGFHFEFGFGDNJFDDAFLJ 
DGGFHFEFGFGDJGGJBFDEDG@NJDEELF@@FHFEFGFGDJGG 
HLAEDGJKDJLF@QJBDGHFEFEDGJ@GFGA@JHGLLGMFDJJGQE 
FDDAFLJeWNKN?[VJGGJHEGEDMFDEJGDJGFDJ
ELFJFPFLFGONJFDHJ 
EPFLAFGFGDJGHJK??JBDGJDFM@Q 

CDJ<7:=R:;NJIWCNJMFLLJA@EJGQEJ@FME 
@GDFGEJFE@JGGJDEGFFDJKEGDGMFEFLLO 
OF@FHPFDGFJEHJ@GAHEDG@JF@JFDJ<7:8R:=Q 

VGJEGDGFDAEJGADJEHHGDG@JGGJDEGFFDJKDJLF@Q 
?FDJAFJEJ?EFDDED@NJIWCNJMFLLJEGDGFDAEJGG 
BDGPFHEJFLLJMFDHFGEHJ@EDPFEE@JFDH 
@ABBLEMEDGFLJ@ABBGDG@JDEEHEHJGGJED@ADE 
EFEQJ@GAHEDGa@JBDGJDE@@QJVQEDEHGDENJ@BEEFHFE 
EQFDJE@JMFLLJPEJHEGEDMFDEHJPOJGDJGFDJ 
F@@E@@MEDGJGHJDEEH@QJVQEJ@EQGGLJMFLLJFL@G 
EGMMADFEFGEJMFGQJHFMFLFE@JDEJALFDLOJGG 
ED@ADEJGQFGJGQEOJFDEJHALLOJFPLEJGGJBFDGFEFBFGE 
FDJGQEJ@EQGGLJEGMMADFGOJHE@BFGEJLFDJAFJE 
PFDDFED@Q 

VGJDEGFFDJ@GAHEDG@JELFJFPLEJHGDJ@BEEFFL 
EHAEFGFGDJ@EDPFEE@NJWFLGMJEMBLGO@JGQDEE 
@BEEFFLJEHAEFGFGDJGEFEQED@JMQGJBA@QRFDJGG 
JEDEDFLJEHAEFGFGDJELF@@DGGM@JFDHJBDGPFHE 
@MFLLJJDGABJ@ABBGDGQJCDJFHHFGFGDNJPF@EHJGD 
GQEJDEEGMMEDHEHJBDGJDFMJ@EDPFEE@JGDJGQE 
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NGAHEDG 
@JMFGQ 
OF@FPFLFG 
FE@ 

CDHFPFHAFLFZEHJKHAEFGFGDJTLFD@JiCKT@UNJ@BEEFFL 
EHAEFGFGDJGEFEQED@JMFOJFL@GJBALLJ@GAHEDG@ 
HDGMJDGDREGDEJELF@@E@JGGJBDGPFHEJFHHFGFGDFL 
FDGEDPEDGFGD@QJVQF@JQFJQLOJFDELA@FGDFDOJMGHEL 
F@JGPED@EEDJPOJGQEJOFDEEGGDJGHJ[@@E@@MEDG
FDHJTDFDEFBFLJMQGJDEJALFDLOJEPFLAFGEJGQE 
EHHFEFEOJGHJGQEJBDGJDFMJFDHJEDJFJEJFD 
GDJGFDJJEGMMADFEFGFGDJMFGQJHFMFLFE@JFPGAG 
@GAHEDGJBEDHGDMFDEEQ 

VQEJOFDEEGGDJGHJ[@@E@@MEDGJF@JDE@BGD@FPLE
HGDIJHEPELGBFDJJFDJEHHEEGFPEJMGDSFDJ 
DELFGFGD@QFBJMFGQJCNKJ@GFHHJFDHJEHAEFGFDJ 
GQEMJFPGAGJGADJBDGJDFMJHGDJFGhDF@SJ@GAHEDG@j
MFFDGFFDFDJJFLLJ@GAHEDGJDEEGDH@NJFDELAHFDJ 
CKT@NJFDJLGESEHJHFLFDJJEFPFDEG@JFDJGQE 
FHMFDF@GDFGFPEJGHHFEEjJFDHJSEEBFDJJFDJFEEE@@
LGJJBDFGDJGGJDELEF@FDJJGQEMJGGJ@GFHHQ 

bEJQFPEJFL@GJDEHGAPLEHJEHHGDG@JMFGQJGQEJCNK 
GGJDEPFEMJ@GAHEDGJDEHEDDFL@JHGDJCKT@JFDJGQE 
GFMEJBEDFGHJDE^AFDEHJADHEDJHEHEDFLJLFMQ 

CDJFHHFGFGDNJMEJBDGPFHEJDAMEDGA@ 
GBBGDGADFGFE@JHGDJGADJ@GAHEDG@JMFGQ 
HF@FPFLFGFE@JGGJBFDGFEFBFGEJFDHJ@AEEEEHJFD 
@BEEFFLJBDGJDFM@J@AEQJF@JEQE@@JFDHJHEDEFDJQ 
VQF@JBF@GJOEFDNJ:7]JGHJGQEJ@GAHEDG@JGDJGAD
EQFMBFGDJEQE@@JGEFMJMEDEJ@GAHEDG@JMFGQ 
CKT@Q 

bEJPELFEPEJGQFGJGADJEHHGDG@JGGJDEGFFDJNGAHEDG@ 
MFGQJOF@FPFLFGFE@JFDEJMG@GJEHHEEGFPEJMQEDJGQEO 
FDEJGFEHJGGJMEEGFDJJFHEDGFHFEHJ@GAHEDGJDEEH@Q 
VQEDEHGDENJBGGEDGFFLJEQFDJE@JGGJGQEJ@EQGGLa@ 
BLFD@JHGDJ<7:=R:;JMFLLJPEJHFEGFGEHJPOJGQE 
GDJGFDJJDEEH@JF@@E@@EHJGQDGAJQGAGJGQE 
OEFDNJFDELAHFDJJFDGEDDFLJF@@E@@MEDG@NJGEFEQED 
GP@EDPFGFGD@NJFDHJBFDEDGJ@ADPEO@Q 
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EFGHIJKKJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPH 
WGGHXGXPF 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9<7:=J>J?F@GJABHFGEHIJ7;97C9<7:= 

DEBEDGJFGFHIE@JJHJGEFFGEDJFHHJFHKJHJ@GDFGEDJ@GFLLJHIM 

YFOGHZTGXPFOJ[PHJTPQ\MSGXF]JGUSJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MSO 

LUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJTPQ\MSGSJGUSJGN^MSOJGXGMSVJ_`Kab_`KcJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFV 

WVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJGPJHS\PHGJTUNF]SOJXFJGSNTUSHJNFVJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJOGN[[XF] 

VZHXF]JGUSJ_`Kab_`KcJOTUPPMJISNHdJeMSNOSJ\HPfXVSJGUSJ[ZMMJGXQSJSgZXfNMSFGJhiREjJP[ 
OGN[[JPFJkZFSJl`mJ_`KanJGUSJiREJ[PHJNFIJVS\NHGSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFS 

l`mJ_`KcnJGUSJiREJ[PHJNVVSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`KcnJNFVJGUS 

iREJP[JOGN[[JNVVSVJXFJFSoMIJTHSNGSVJ\POXGXPFOJ[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`Kc 

ZOXF]JGUSJGN^MSOJ\HPfXVSVd 

KdJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MS 

NOPJCQF@@DEEK NOPJCQF@@DEEK NOPJCQF@@DEEK 
OEFFGED@JEH 
R9S79:8 

OEFFGED@ 
TEBFDGEHJ89:9:8 

OEFFGED@JNJQQJHI 
YFFFHGJZE@JGJEH@ 

UJR9S79:= 89:9:8JUJR9S79:= 

<8MC :7 :7 

_dJWVQXFXOGHNGPHJePOXGXPFJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MS
 

NOP 
XHKJHJ@GDFGJ\E 
ZE@JGJEH@JEH 
R9S79:8 

8 

NOP 
XHKJHJ@GDFGED@ 
TEBFDGEHJ89:9:8 
UJR9S79:= 

S 

NOP 
XHKJHJ@GDFGED@ 
NJQQJHIJYFFFHG 
ZE@JGJEH@J89:9:8 
UJR9S79:= 

S 

NOPJCQF@@DEEK 
OEFFGED@JXHHEH 
JHJYEZJZE@JGJEH@ 
89:9:8J[JR9S79:= 

:7 

NOP 
XHKJHJ@GDFGED@ 
XHHEHJJHJYEZ 
ZE@JGJEH@J89:9:8 
[JR9S79:= 

R 

NOPJEL 
CQF@@DEEK 
OEFFGED@JEH 
R9S7:= 

S8MC 

NOP 
XHKJHJ@GDFGJ\E 
ZE@JGJEH@JEH 
R9S79:= 

:S 
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ldJRSMMJIPZHJOTUPPMpOJOGPHI 

LUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQNIJ\HPfXVSJNVVXGXPFNMJXF[PHQNGXPFJXFJGUXOJOSTGXPFJP[JGUSJWFFZNM 
qS\PHGJN^PZGJGUSXHJHSO\STGXfSJGSNTUSHJNFVJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJNGGHXGXPFJHNGSOJNOJOPQS 

GSNTUSHJPHJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJVS\NHGZHSOJVPJFPGJHS[MSTGJNVfNFTSQSFGJPHJQPfSQSFGJoXGUXF 

GUSJTUNHGSHJOTUPPMJFSGoPHrOdJsTUPPMOJQNIJ\HPfXVSJNVVXGXPFNMJVSGNXMJGPJHS[MSTGJN 

GSNTUSHtOJNVfNFTSQSFGJZ\JGUSJMNVVSHJGPJNJMSNVSHOUX\J\POXGXPFJoXGUXFJGUSJFSGoPHrJPH 
NFJNVQXFXOGHNGPHtOJQPfSQSFGJGPJMSNVJNJFSoJFSGoPHrJTUNHGSHJOTUPPMd 
J 

9YEJDE@BEH@E: 

udJLUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJSFOZHSJGUNGJNMMJ\HPO\STGXfSJSQ\MPISSOJHSTSXfSJTMSNHNFTS 

GUHPZ]UJGUSJvwsExJy[[XTSJP[JsTUPPMJeSHOPFFSMJqSfXSoJNFVJWTTPZFGN^XMXGIJhyseqWj 
\HXPHJGPJSQ\MPIQSFGdJW[GSHJNFJSQ\MPISSJUNOJ^SSFJTMSNHSVmJOTUPPMOJNHSJHSgZXHSVJGP 

QNXFGNXFJ\HPP[JP[JOZTUJTMSNHNFTSJXFJGUSJ[XMSJP[JSNTUJSQ\MPISSdJiPHJGUSJON[SGIJP[JNMM 
OGZVSFGOmJTUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJGNrSJXQQSVXNGSJOGS\OJGPJGSHQXFNGSJGUSJSQ\MPIQSFGJP[ 
XFVXfXVZNMOJoUPJUNfSJ^SSFJVSFXSVJTMSNHNFTSdJyFTSJGUSJSQ\MPISSOJUNfSJ^SSF 

GSHQXFNGSVmJGUSJOTUPPMJQZOGJGSHQXFNGSJGUSJHSgZSOGJ[PHJTMSNHNFTSJXFJGUSJREWLz 

OIOGSQdJJ 
J 
zNfSJNMMJSQ\MPISSOJUNfSJ^SSFJTMSNHSVJGUHPZ]UJGUSJvwsExJREWLzJOIOGSQ{ 

J 

;E@ 

|dJiPHJ\SHO\STGXfSJPHJTZHHSFGJSQ\MPISSOJoUPOSJTMSNHNFTSJUNOJ^SSFJVSFXSVmJUNfSJIPZ 

GSHQXFNGSVJGUSXHJSQ\MPIQSFGJNFVJHSQPfSVJGUSQJ[HPQJGUSJREWLzJOIOGSQ{ 

;E@ 

RUNFrJIPZ 
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EFGHIJKLJMFNOHGPQPORJSOTNUOHV
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:89:7;<J=J>F?GJ@AHFGEHIJ789B79:7;< 

WSEJXYZFGJYQJ[\\JSOTNUOHV 

]XOHGPQPORJTFRJMFNOHGPQPOR^JTVJYQ 

_`ab`Kc 

B; 

WSEJXYZFGJYQJ[\\JXOHGPQPOR 

SOTNUOHVJTVJYQJ_`ab`Kc 

;C 

dFVGHZNGPYFVJQYHJeOfYHGPFgJhOHNOFGJYQJMFNOHGPQPORJSOTNUOHV 

SUOJGTi\OJiO\YjJPVJHOQ\ONGPkOJYQJGUOJPFQYHlTGPYFJNY\\ONGORJGUHYZgUJGUOJYF\PFOJfYHGT\JQYH 

NYlf\PTFNOJjPGUJ/OjJ0YH1J2GTGOJERZNTGPYFJ3TjJLc,-]a^]T.K^JQYHJGOTNUPFgJVGTQQ 

/ZT\PQPNTGPYFV0JEFGOHJGUOJHO\OkTFGJQZ\\JGPlOJO/ZPkT\OFGJ]WSE^JNYZFGJYQJGOTNUOHVJPFJOTNU 

NY\ZlF0JWYHJO1Tlf\O2JTJVNUYY\JjPGUJLbJQZ\\JGPlOJGOTNUOHVJTFRJ,JUT\QJGPlOJGOTNUOHV 

jYZ\RJUTkOJTFJWSEJNYZFGJYQJLL0,0JdQJlYHOJGUTFJYFOJNY\ZlFJTff\POVJGYJTJfTHGPNZ\TH 

GOTNUOH2Jf\OTVOJVO\ONGJYFOJNY\ZlFJQYHJGUOJWSEJNYZFG0Jh\OTVOJRYJFYGJPFN\ZRO 

fTHTfHYQOVVPYFT\V2JVZNUJTVJGOTNUOHJTVVPVGTFGV0 

WSEJNYZFGJYQJZFNOHGPQPORJGOTNUOHVJYFJ_`ab`Kc2JTFRJOTNUJZFNOHGPQPORJGOTNUOHJVUYZ\RJiO 

NYZFGORJYF\IJYFNO0 

;IJEGGFJJDEFJKG@HGJGLJ@HKEDGMLMEHJGEFKNED?JOPQB7Q;<R 

:IJDEFJKG@HGJGLJ@HKEDGMLMEHJGEFKNED?JSMGNJFGJJEF?GJGNDEEJTEFD? 
GLJEJEUEHGFDTVJUMHHJEJGDJ?EKGHHFDTJKJF??DGGUJGEFKNMHW 
EXAEDMEHKEJOPQB7Q;<R 

BIJDEFJKG@HGJGLJ@HKEDGMLMEHJGEFKNED?JSNGJFDEJGEH@DEHJGD
 
GEH@DEJGDFKYJKGJJEWEJLFK@JGTJOPQB7Q;<R
 

CIJDEFJKG@HGJGLJ@HKEDGMLMEHJGEFKNED?JSMGNJGSGJTEFD?JGLJEEFKN 
LGDJZUEDMKFJEXAEDMEHKEJOPQB7Q;<R 

[IJDEFJKG@HGJGLJ@HKEDGMLMEHJGEFKNED?JSMGNJEXKEAGMGHFJ

\@?MHE??VJADGLE??MGHFJVJFDGM?GMKVJFGNJEGMKVJGDJUMJMGFDT
 
EXAEDMEHKEJOPQB7Q;<R
 

PIJDEFJKG@HGJGLJ@HKEDGMLMEHJGEFKNED?JSNGJHGJHGGJLMGJMHGGJFHT 
GLJGNEJADMGDJLG@DJKFGEWGDME?JOPQB7Q;<R 

SUTF1JIYZ0 

DEFJCG@HG 

;8 

C 

7 

; 

B 

1 
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ROSALYN YALOW’S PROPOSED ORGANIZATION CHART
2017-18 (March)
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THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 
116 East 169th Street Bronx, New York, 10452 
 Phone: 347.735.5480 info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

2018-2019 Academic Calendar 

September 2018 

4th First Day of School 

10th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

19th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

20th Meet The Teacher: 12:00p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 

October 2018 

8th Columbus Day: No School Teacher Professional Development 

November 2018 

6th Election Day: No School Teacher Professional Development 

12th Veterans Day: No School 

21st Half Day For Staff 

22nd – 23rd Thanksgiving Holiday: No School 

28th Parent Teacher Conference: 12:00 p.m. – 6:00p.m. 

December 2018 

21st Half day for students and staff 

24th – 31st Winter Recess: No School  

January 2019 

1st New Years Day: No School 

18th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

21st Dr. Martin Luther King Day: No School 

http://www.yalowcharter.org/
mailto:�info@yalowcharter.org
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February 2019 

5th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

15th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

18th – 22nd Mid-Winter Recess: No School 

March 2019 

22nd Teacher Professional Development: No School 

27th Parent Teacher Conference: 12:00p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 

April 2019 

12th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

19th – 26th Spring Recess: No School 

May 2019 

15th Parent Teacher Conference: 12:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 

24th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

27th Memorial Day: No School 

June 2019 

6th Teacher Professional Development: No School 

29th Half Day for Students and Staff 

• 193 total school days 

• 1st Snow Day: February 18th School will be open 

• 2nd Snow Day: April 23rd School will be open 

• 3rd Snow Day: April 24th School will be open 

• Teacher Professional Development Day Hours: 9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
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